Company - GPT RE Limited
File No 34819

;N e
S i [T T
AT O B fueg I

S J
. GPT RE Limited
14 September 2005 e - ABN 27 107 426 504
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Level 52
MLC Centre
Securities and Exchange Commission ’ 19-29 Martin Place
Division of Corporate Finance Sydney NSW 2000
Office of International Corporation Finance ’ Australia
3/\(/) Osi;.r?trt(e)it'g CE 20549 GPT Securityholder
ashington, U.%. Service Centre
U.SA. 05011361 Freesal
1800 025 095
Attention: Filing Clerk : Facsimile

B ™ 0292259318

. BT b

Dear Sir : gpt@gpt.com.au
www.gpt.com.au

Re: Company: GPT RE Limited
File No: 34819

Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the following documents are
submitted in respect of the above registration:

Date Documents

25/08/2005 2005 Mid Year Report

04/08/2005 Mid Year Resuits Presentation

01/08/2005 Half Yearly Report & Half Year Accounts

02/08/2005 Further leasing at Darling Park Stage 3

01/08/2005 GPT expands presence at Homebush Bay

14/07/2005 Maijor lease pre-commitment at Austrak Business Park
04/07/2005 Completion of Sale Facility

01/07/2005 Implementation of Woden and Penrith

29/06/2005 Acquisition of El Questro Resort

Yours faithfully PR@@ESSED
GPT RE Limited
SEP 2 1 2005

8" Anoon iy

ounsel and Company Secretary
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Origirzlly estaclished in 1971, the GPT
Group is one of Australia’s cldest and
Iargest listed preperty groups with assets
of over §92 bithan, GPT's assetsincluda
Quaiity invesiment properiies located
around Australiz in the retall, office,
indusisizl, angd hotal/tourism sectors.

Orther investments include a S0% interest

in a joint venture with global investment

and adviscry firm, Baboock & Brown,
praviding s platform for higher growth
through akroader range of property related
activitias including invasimzanisin a range
of Earopean assets. (0P also invesis inthe
development of farge-scale masterplanne
urban communities i Ausiraka.
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6 mths to & mths to
~ Key Half Year Results 30 fune 04 30 June 05
Distribution per security 10.9¢ 11.4c¢
Tax advantaged component 44.9% 0%
N _AU31Dec04 At30 june 05
Total Assets ' $9,097.0m £9.316.9m
Retail Property Investments $4,749.5m $4,312.6m
Oftice Property investments $3,078.9m $3,155.7m
Hotel/Tourism Property Investments 5776.9m $831.6m
tndustrial/Business Park Property investments $327.8m $354.6m
Equity investment in Joint Venture NA $446.5m
Masterplanned Urban Communities investments $36.1m $41.0m
Number of units on issue {'000s} 20186717 2016,717
Net asset backing per unit $3.02 $3.03
Total borrowings $2,698.6m $2,843.0m
Borrowings as % of total assets 29.7% 30.5%
Soetbadion & s Ak
Retait 53% 47%
Office 34% 35%
Hotel/Tourism 9% 9%
tndustrialfBusiness Park 4% 4%
Equity investment in Joint Venture NA 5%
Masterplanned Urban Communities - -
......................................................................................................................................................... 6mth5106mth510
. 30duneDd | 30June0S
Retait $144.0m** $159.0m
Office $109.2m £113.9m
Hotel/Tourism $24.6m $36.0m
Industrial/Business Park £10.7m $12.4m
Masterplanned Urban Communities $1.2m $2.2m
e A4 31 DRE 0 AL30 Jun@ 05
SECURITY PRICE $3.74 $3.65

«

Adjusted for the $17.4 milhicr acquisition of E} Questro Resortin Judy 20035 and the sale of S0% interests
1 7

in Waoden and Penrith Plazas on 1 July 2005,

== Income includes groond rent and incorne frem depasits unger rezait property HViA 2t Sunshine Plaza.
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On 2 June 2005, unitholders in General

: Property Trust approved a propaosal

. tointernalise the ma nagement of the

. Trust and to create a new ‘stapled entity’
~the GPT Group.

. As outlined in the Notice of Meeting &

: Explanatory Memorandum (EM) dated

i 2 May 2005, GPT also entered into a

! joint venture with Babcock & Brown and
| sold 50% interests in two shapping

i centres (Woden Plaza and Penrith Plaza)
: following approval of this proposal.

. The financial results for the six months
to June 2005 did not reflect the benefit

. of the internalisation or Joint Ventare
investments, which were not

- implemented until the end of this period.
: These results, however, reflected a solid
i performance from GFT’s core portfolio
of property assets, and an increase in
distributions - up 4.6% on the previous
corresponding period.

GPT's results for the six months to

30 June 2005 reflected the impact

of the new Internationai Financial

i Reporting Standards (A-IFRS). GPT's

. fult year financial report will be prepared
© in line with these new standards.

LUE N0 34019

The internalisation of management
outlined in GPT's recent EM is now
virtually complete, with GPT operating
from new premises from 6 June 2005,
following the 2 June meeting of
investors. The transition of management
will be complete on 15 August 2005
with the transfer of the remaining retait
management staff. At that time,
management of GPT's 10 fully owned
shopping centres and 11 homemaker
assets will be transferred from Lend
Lease. On completion of the transition,
GPT will have a full-scale property team
with approximately 200 staff across

a range of property discipfines,
including retail leasing, property

and development management.

Transaction costs associated with the
internalisation of management were in
fine with the forecast outlined in the
Notice of Meeting and Explanatory
Memorandum. A paymentto Lend Lease
of $16.5 million was agreed on 21 May
2005. This payment, to facilitate an
orderly transition and the transfer of
assets, was well below the payment of up
to $45 million conternplated in the EM.



The internalisation wilf result in cost
savings and areduction in GPT's
management expense ratio in future
periods. The management expense
ratio, previously a range of 45.60 basis
points under Lend Lease's management,
has been reduced to approximately 25
basis points.

The Joint Venture agreement with
Babcock & Brown has also made
significant progress. The Joint Venture
acquired its first assets on 30 June.
These assets, which consist of six
German residential and office assets and
one retail asset in Prague, nave a value
of approximately $1.1 billion. Consistent
with farecasts, GPT has made its first
equity investment in the Joint Venture,
of approximately $450 mitlion. This
represents only 5% of GPT's totat
property investments. GPT’s investment
in the foint Venture is limited to 15%

of total assets. The performance of the
assets acquired has been in line with
expectations, and the Joint Venture is
weli placed to acquire additional assets
that meet the required investment
criteria in the next 12 months.
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Currently assets with a value of

$1.5 biltion are under negotiation,
positioning the Joint Venture to be fully
invested (with approximately $5.6 billion
in assets) by the end of 2006.

In the six maonthe to 30 fune 2005, the
GPT Group distributed 11.4 cents per
security, an increase of 4.6% on the

10.9 cents distributed in the six months
to June 2004,

Underlying earnings increased for the
half-year to 30 June 2005, up 3% over
the same pertad in 2004.

The increase in earnings reflected a solid
result from GPT's property portfolio,
with all portfolios increasing income,
and was also assisted by the benefit of
recent acquisitions and developments.

GPT has continued to build on the trend
in @arnings growth established over the
last few years, demnonstrating the quality
of its core Australian portfofio and
diverse income streams.
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tmonthsto 6 months to
e 3UNE 2004 June 2005
Distribution {cps) 10.9 114
t Earnings (cps) 10.9 114
Underlying earnings 3%

growth*

- Excivdes the impact of te pariormance fee paidin Jute
2004, cosis assnziated with the Stocklsnd takeaver alfer and
interpatisabnn propessl and the impact of the adoption of
A-1FRS on the financial statermants.

GPT’s total return (security price
movement and income) for the year to
30 June 2005 was 11.2%, below the Index
i return of 18.1%. GPT's total return for
i the year to December 2004 was 33.6%.

! The price performance of GPT
securities since the internalisation has

i been strong, with the price trading at

. the high end of the range suggested by
the Independent Expert in the EM.

The yield on the closing price of $3.84

i at 3 August 2005 (the day prior to

! the mid-year results announcement)
was 7.16%.

The first half of 2005 represents the
first period in which GPT has reported
as & stapled entity and under the new
International Financial Reporting
Standards {A-IFRS). This has resulted
in changes to a range of financial
performance measures,

At 30 June 2005 (adjusted for the sale
of interesis in Penrith and Woden Flazas
and the acqguisition of El Questro
Resort), the Group had total assets

of $9.3 billion and borrowings of

$2 8 billion, resulting in a ratio of debt
1o total assets of 30.5%. This is below
the Listed Property Trust (LPT} sector
average of 37.4% and well within
GPT's borrowing limit (0% of total
tangible assets).

In June 2005, GPT issued $300 millian
in Medium Term Notes and also
established a 600 milion Euro

debt tacility. The MTN issue was
oversubscribed and achieved a

rate of 47 basis points above the
relevant benchmark.




The proceeds of the MTN issue and the
proceeds from the sale of interests in
Penrith and Waoden Plazas, along with

a recent drawdown of 300 milfion under
the Eurc debt facility, have been used to
fund GPT's investment in the Joint
Venture and to repay short term debt.

GPT’s current weighted average interest
rate, atter fees and margins, is 6.2%.

The outlock for future performance is
strong, as outlined in GPT’s recent EM.
Foliowing implementation of the
internalisation and Joint Venture,

and the solid performance of GPT's
$8.7 billion core Australian property
portfolio in this period, the Group is
weli placed to deliver on the forecast
increases in income to investors of

13 cents per security in the second
nalf of 2005 and 27.5 cents per security
in 2006.
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Income from the Retal Portfotio was up
10.4% on the same period last year (4%
on a comparable basis},

GPT's shopping centras continued to

trade above industry sales productivity

benchmarks, with regional speciaity
sales per sgm of $9,520. Regional
specialty occupancy costs (retailers’
gross rent as a percentage of their sales)
remain reasonable, at 14.5%. Total centre
safes per sqm across GPT's shopping
centres increased by 3.4% and specialty
sales per sgm were up 6.5% in the year to

| 30 June 2005,
The fow vacancy rate of less than 1%

across the Porttolio in conjunction with

the performance of recently completed

developments and the progress of

. future development projects,

consolidates the cutlook for continued
Retail Portfolio rental income growth.

. The Retail Portfolio has significant

pipeline of current and future projects,

with 3 potential value of aver $1 billion

over the next four years.

File No 34819

A major redevelopment of Melbourne
Central's retail space was largely
complete in December 2004. The
entertainment precinct is due to open
i0 September 2005 and the $260 million
development has only one shop
remaining to be leased. More than

260 of the 287 tenancies are open

and trading, including Borders,
Freedom and BaySwiss. The Centre
represents a unigue urban shopping
experience, with a range of international
and national retailers slongside cafés
and restaurants,

A major expansion of Penrith Plaza in NSW
will be complate at the end of 2005. At an
approximate cost of $70 million (GPT’s
50% share), the development is expected
to deliver a first year yield in excess of the
forecast 8%.

Work on the expansion of Macarthur
Square, also in NSW, is also progressing
to plan with the first siage of the
development due to open at the end of
this year. The second stage will be
complete in the first half of 2006. Close
to 80% of the income is now committed
and the $109 miflion (GPT's 50% share)
development is expected to deliver a
yield of sapproximately 8%.




Further work progressed on the planned
Rouse Hill Town Centre, which forms part
of the $1.2 billion Rouse Hill Regional
Centre in north-west Sydney. The
precinct plan for the developmeant

was approved by Bautkham Hills Shire
Councl on 26 July 20605, This is a major
milestone for the development, which is
now anticipated to commence in 2006.
GPT will develop and own the Town
Centre which forms the retail precinct

of this planned community. GPT has

a joint venture with Lend Lease which
will develop the remaining facilities

and the residential component of this
large scale development.

At Charfestown Square an expansion

of the Centre from 47,000 sgm to

80,000 sgm is glanned. The development
has already been the subject of an
extensive community and authority
gngagement program and Lake
Macquarie Council has now formaily
commitied to discussions regarding
land transactions required for the
development to proceed.

T UL W STV AS

At Fortitude Valley i Brisbane, the
second stage of GPT's Homemaker
City was complete in July 2005. The
remaining component of the jirst stage
was acquired in March 2005 Combined
with GPT’s original investment, GPT
now has a $122 mitlion bulky goods
centre of significant scale, consisting

of hamemaker retail and commercial
facilities with associated car parking.

GPT also continued to remix the
Homemaker Portfolio with the sale of
Homemaker City Underwood. The sale
price of $19 million was well above the
book value at December 2004 of

$13 million. The asset was 2 smailer
non-core component of the original
Homemaker Portfolic and had been
acquired in November 2001 for
approximately $10.5 million.

On 1 fuly, GPT announced
implementation of the Woden and
Panrith Piaza transactions outlined in the
EM. Westfield has replaced Lend Lease
as manager of these assets and GPT will
continue as a 50% cwner of both centres.

;
I
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LHtice Porifolio
Despite challenging market conditions
! characterised by inconsistent demand,
: GPT's Office Portiolio delivered solid

: performance, with income growth and

increased occupancy (at $4%).

! Afocus on leasing across the Portiolio
: has maintained a strong lease expiry
profile, with limited short-term expiry
and an average lease term of 6.1 years.

OQver 61,000 sgm of office space was

. leased across GP'T's office assets in the
i first half. (n addition, terms were agreed
: across 2 further 15,000 sgqm of space.

! This leasing, which was across a range

i of assets in the Portfolio, included:

+ Significant leasing at Australia
Squeare, where occupancy increased
to 71.6% {up from 65.2% at December
2004}, including leases to Westpoint
Corporation (1,600 sgm}, Thomsen
Playford Services (1,600 sgm) and
Jones Day Pty Ltd {350 sgqm).

= A lease to MSBC over 12,000 sgm
for a term of six years at the HSBC
Centre in Sydney.

= L gases to Telstra (over 9,000 sgm
from 1 November 2005} and ACCC
(3,000 sgm from 1 January 2004) at
Meloourne Central, where occupancy
currently sits at 99%.

On 2 August 2005, GPT announced that
terms had been agreed with Rabobank
to lease 9,000 sqm of the high-rise
space at Darling Park Stage 3, which

is currently under construction.

The third and final stage of the Darling
Park complex in Sydney is due to be
completed at the end of 2005, ahead
of the original program. Additional
leasing to Rabobank has resulted in
only three floors of the 18-level office
building remaining to be leased.

A year one yield of 7.2% is anticipated
from this investment.

BT e S g d b
INRLITIEMY FTOYETNNG

Income from the Hotel/Tourism
Portiolio increased strongly {up 13.5%
on a comparable basis) despite weaker
than expected domestic travel, as
increased inbound tourism contributed
to strong revenue growth at Ayers Rock
Resart, GPT's major tourism asset.

Income from Ayers Rock Resort
increased by almost 17%, as cccupancy,
room rate and revenue all showed
significant improverments on the
previous correspanding period.

The Four Points by Sheraton in Sydney
also benefited from increased room rate



and revenues, while at the Holiday Inn
in Brisbane strong growth was also
achieved. Income from both assets
increased over the previous year.

The performance of the P&O Australia
Resorts portfolio (now Yoyages Lodges),
acquired in July 2004, was adversely
impacted by relatively flat domestic
tourism.

Voyages have now integrated these
assets into its operations, delivering on
forecast cost savings, and opportunities
exist to improve performance through
the potential to market the assets in

key inbound markets utilising Voyages'
extensive distribution network.

The Lodges Portfslio, which includes
Dunk, Bedarra, Brampton, Heron, Wilson,
and Lizard Islands, Sitky Caks and Cradle
Mountain Lodges, and Wrotham Park
Station, was expanded with the acquisition
of the B} Questro Resort in Western
Australia in July 2005.

This Resort further extends GPT's
portfalio of luxury, nature-based assets.
The asset was acquired for $17.4 million
and is anticipated to deliver a first year
yield of approximately 10%. The Resort is
located in a unigue natural environment,
the Kimberley region, and comprises

73 accommodation units.

. . . .
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GPYT's [ndustrial/Business Park Partfolio
continued to expand over the first six
months of 2005. The Porifolic now has
a value of $354 million. Income from
the Portfolio increased by 4% on a
comparable basis.

Significant feasing was secured across
the Portfolio, resulting in an average
lease term to expiry of 5.4 years {by
income) and occupancy across the
Portioho of 98.5% {including land leases).

Since January 2005, over 347,000 sqm
was leased or renewed at GPT's
industriaf assets, including major leases
atthe Austrak Business Park in
Somerton, Victoria. These leases will
result in 80% of the 100 hectare Park
being developed. They included:

S

- Alease over 229,000 sgm to
P& Ports Ltd in relation to the
intermodal terminal.

= Alease to Labelmakers for a new
22,200 sgm facility, now under
canstruction at the Park.

# A major pre-lease to Coles Myer for a
new 74,700 sgm national distribution
centre now under consiruction on the
site and feased to Coles Myer for a
period of 20 years from completion.




On 1 August, GPT announced the

acquisition of 5 Figtree Drive. The asset,

which is being acquirad from ACER

Computer Austratia Pty Ltd on a sale
and feaseback arrangement, is located
adjacent to 7 Figtree Drive and 8 MHerb
Efliott Avenue. Combined with these

. two adjacent properties, GPT now has
i the potential to develop a major

business park on the consalidated site,
extending the expansion potential at
Haomebush Bay, which includes the final
stage of the Quad site, and expansion
potential at the Samsung site.

Development plans for the finai stage of

the Quad are currently being progressed.

Further progress was made on both the
Rouse Hill Regional Centre (NSW) and

the Twin Waters development (Qid).
The precinct plan for the Rouse Hill

Regicnal Centre, which includes the
retail Town Centre and assaciated
infrastructure, was approved in July
2005, paving the way for commencement
of the projectin early 2006. The site

includes over 1,500 residential lots,
which will be developed as part of
a masterplanned community.

At Twin Waters in south-east
Cueensland, a development application
for Stage 1, which increased density,

has now been approved. The existing
Resort is trading well and a significant
profit was achieved on the sale of the
goif course to a specialised operator.

Major works are anticipated to
commence next year at both properties.

An extraordinary Meeting of
Unitholders was held on 2 June 2605,
Over 400 investors and visitors
attended the meeting, which was
also webcast via GPT's website.

Investors voted in favour of 2 proposal
to internalise the management of GPT
and, as a result, a new stapled entity
the GPT Group {GPT) was created.
The stapling was effecied with the
issue of a share in GFT Management
Holdings Limited for each existing
General Property Trust unit on 10 June
2005, [nvestors in GPT now hold one
share and one unit in the Group for



gach General Property Trust unit they
previously heid. The unit and share trade
together as a single "stapled security”,

GPT is now trading as the GPT Group on
the Australian Stock Exchange, under
the code GPT.

Special offers are available to investors
interested in staying at GFT’s hotel
properties - details of these offers can
be obtained from the Securityholder
Service Centre {Freecall 1800 025 095

The following information refates to
distributions received in the July 2004 .
June 2005 financial year and may be
useful to investors in the preparation of

_Mar2005  20May05 57
*  This dividend is fully franked.

ALY = UL L LITHEU
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tax returns. The information below is
presented on s generic cents per
security {cps) basis.

Enguiries about your investment in GFT
canbe directed to the Securityholder
Service Centre on Freecali 1800 025 095,
This service is available from 8.30 am

to 5.30 pm (Sydney time) on all
business days.

You can access GFT's website at
www.gpt.com.au. The website has an
email alert service that allows invastors
to receive updates of News and other
iterns posted to the website.

** The franking credit of 0.007 cents per security is included in the Other Taxable Component.
Securityholders are required to treat as assessable both the franked dividend and the

feanking credit.
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1 Westpac Custodian Nominees Limited 310,395,837
2 JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 288,855,804 14.32%
i 3 National Nominees Limited 217,306,543 10.78%
4  Baincor Nominees Pty Limited 122,463,324 - 6.07%
: 5 Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited
{CFS WSLE Property Secs A/C}) 94,177 564 8.67%
& ANZ Nominees Limited (Cash income A/C} 32,401,018 4.58%
07 Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 88,487,853 4.39%
8 Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 62,845,907 3.12%
9 AMP Life Limited 36,593,657 1.81%
10 Cogent Nominees Pty Limited (SMP Accounts) 34,694,939 1.72%
11 Westpac Financial Services Limited 33,707,251 1.57%
12 Queenstand investment Corporation 29,690,446 1.47%
13  ANZ Nominees Limited 24,757,298 1.08%
14 Victorian Workcover Authority 18,226,027 0.90%
15 Bond Street Custodians Limited
{Property Securities A/C) 17,004,281 0.84%
16 Transport Accident Commission 15,369,977 0.76%
17 Bond Street Custodians Limited
{ENH Property Securities A/C) 15,064,845 0.75%
18  HSBC Custody Nominees {Australia) Limited 14,742,323 0.73%
19 GPT Management Limited
: {Responsible Entity for GPT Sphit Trust A/C) 14,038,703 0.70%
20 RBC Global Services Australia Nominees
. Pty Limited (Pipooled A/C) 10,758,435 0.53%
TOTAL Securities held by Top 20 1536,583,032 76.19%
" TOTAL SECURITIES ON ISSUE 2,016,716,610 100.00%

Securityroldsrs inthe GPT Group are entitled 1o one vote for each secarity held.
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GPT RE Limited

ABN 27 107 426 504

as Responsible Entity of
General Property Trust
AFSL 250126

GPT Management Holdings Limited
ABN 67 113510 188

LeveISZ

MLC Centre

19 Martin Place
SYDNEY NSW 2000
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Pater Joseph OAM, Chairman
Eric Goadwin

Malcolm Latham AM

lan Martin

Ken Moss

Brian Norris

Elizabeth Nosworthy AO
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ASX Perpetua1 Regsstrars Limited
Level 8, HSBC Centre

580 George Street

SYDNEY NSW 2006

GPYT Securlty Registrar
Locked Bag Al4
SYDNEY SOUTH NSW 1235
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GPT is listed on the Australian Stock
Exchange under the following
ASX Listing code:

GPT Stapled Securities: GPT




Company - GPT RE Limited

File No 34819



Company - GPTRE Linye
FieNoddgrg

2005 MID YEAR RESULTS PRESENTATION




Abajeais dnoio
21epdn 01]0J310d
21epdn aanjuap Juliof
anq:. uonesljeudaju]

S3|NSaJ |eidURUL JESA PIW

VAN3OVY

6185€ ON 314

petry M LdD - fuedwo)



JUSWIIRIS BUWIODOUl Ul AJIjIIR|OA S9SEaIOU]

JUaJaIp Ajjeldaiewl Juswilels aulodul
‘pabueyoun suonRnNQLIASIp pue sSMoy} ysed

Adusiedsues) ssa| Ul $3Nsal SYAI-Y 4O uonesyddy

SAQAVANVYLS
ONILYOd3Y M3N

6185E ON 1y

AT Y 149 - Anedmoy



£0ed

S19pIOyAUINIAS 0] djqeAed sjunowy

sjenbg
(€'6) saipadoud Jo jesodsip uo uieb N
(v'97) sjuawisnipy snuaAay pue anjep Jieq
S$S97
74 % 19410 pue S1S0D uoljesieulaqur
5°S0¢ $1s0D {@dueuld
| snid
2'99 (SYdI-v) xe] Jo)e 1jo.d

(w$) sjenjoy

junowe 9|qeinqliisip Jo ucIjeljduoldYy

NOILVITIONOD3Y
11Nns3y

6185E ON [

PN T 14D - Avedino)



*SI2PIOYALLINIIS 0 SISO DJULUl PUR UOIESHEUIBIU) UM PRIRIDOSSE SISO2
‘sanadoud jo jesodsip uo Jyosd ‘SaAIJUBIUL BSBI| JO UOHRSIoWR ‘S3aly Jusd JO uolubodal

‘syjususnipe anjea diey 94043q S1 An2as Jad sbuluiey "sjuawalels |eroueUl 3Y) U0 SYH4I-Y
‘pourad BuIpuodssilod SNoIA3Ld U0 PRSEq YIMOID 4

40 uondope ay jo Pedwt ay) sapnpPx3

‘Jesodold UOIIRSI[RUIDIUI PUR 19440 19A03)8) pURPR0IS ay] ‘jesodoud Jabiaw asea pual ayy
yym PajeIcosse 51500 pue pied saay asuewlogidd ‘a9) ul abueyd oyl Jo pedwit 3yl sopnPX3 «

%C'TT %9°¢€¢E %778 %8°CT unijey JA 1
£0°c$ zo0'c$ €L°C% 09°Z% Ananoas sad vIN
%0'¢ %I°¢ %T1°E %9°€ | xUIMouab BujAlspun

AR €12 9'1¢ +°'0C (sdo) sbutuieg
%9'b %8¢t %6°¢ %%S°¢ 538.@
P IT 0°¢¢ I ¥4 +°0C (sd2) uonnquisia
(syyw 9)
+*xG00¢ +00¢ £00¢ ¢00¢

\\\\\\\\\\N

dINVIWAOLUId
ONILVIIdO DONOULS

618%€ ON a1y

PATNT 34 149 - Aeduoy



P=20UL3LUUIOD JUSUI]INJOOY
juswdojonap 13 buises)
Juswabeuew Aj1odoad ssodoe Ayjiqeded asnoyul |In4g
(3snbny g1 19jsues) Ayiofew)
sisijenads j1e3a4d 08T APjewixosdde Jo wea] |1e39Y

1SNBNY GT SSaUISNG/S243UDD [1B1D] JO UOIISURL]

S1sedalod YUlim oull Ul S1S0D uoijoesued |
aoepd ul sasiwRad /swdisAS
pajulodde Ar ‘19beuely jRIDUDYH
(wesn 149 bunsixa) pajjy s9104 J0JUss ||¥
juswobeuew jo AJiNUuUo)

aunfr 9 243Ud) D1 Ul Paysijqeliss weal Juswabeuepy

uonesijeutaiu]

31vdAadn NOILISNVYil

618pE ON 9T

PAINT Y 14D - Amedwo)



T

i

o

z m\\\u“uﬁm.“\\\,wm T s Z Z A w%u“m\ﬁ \n\. 72 \Ww\ H\ 525 WVQ W\S\\Wu« 7%
7 % ¢3 B DI B B 25 BB
; ._ﬁ\. ; ] ’ L \\\.\wx 5 \\\WX i
kX

)

1

7

SIS PATLRIR sl AN \n‘w«\\\@‘\w«&%\\%ﬁ“\m\\“w‘\»\ \\“\\\Q\\\N\\@“\Q\va.ﬁ‘m.\\“
. G &.\«w&\&.\&.\&\\\\\ 2 \\m\a A o TR
\m\\\\\.\“\&m&h\ \“\MMW.\.%\WW\ % \M\M&\ % «%\WM.\N—.\W«‘ . \X.a . @..F.%\.\&V \e ’ 4 %ﬁ&w\
% e v .\%\\._\.\ 2 R %m& A
s 7 4l R

(s
/i

2

17
o

;§§@W

.

7

ANLIONYLS

6185€ ON aftg

PIWITTY 1 - Auredwo)



3INSa4 dnoJD) Ul PIIRPHOSUOD 3Q |IIM SIBRAOA ‘Bunf Q€ wo.l) 19J0N«

R 2 N\\\\«m«\\w\@ TR

A e
2 ¥ g 7
o

?

AoRad

]
&\w e

APV

ANLONAULS
A1LVI0dAU0D

618%€ ON 3T

payuT Ty LD - Aoedwo)



OPIWUIO) UONEIDUNLLDY pUk UOIIRUILUON

juawebeuep sy 13 pny
S9JJWLIOD

(mau) suodq oIN

(mau) unae uerg

OV AyyiomsoN yyaqezi|3

SLLION uelig

SSO Ud)|

WY weyie] wjodjepn

UuIMpoon dLIg

(41e4yd) WvO ydasor 193od
sioquuawl g Jo pasuduwod pieog

daivosd 1dS

618b€ ON 211

P Ty 140 - Aed o)



aseds juedea uo sdjuelenb swodug
yied Abojouyoal aubojo)

paonpads Aouedepn

S00T ydiep Buiuado jjos
L1929y anbeud

[exuded apoAd94 03 soniunijtoddQ
10)09S ayj ojul smo|} jeuded buons

Aduednooo sjqels
01|0J110d |BIIUDPISDY UBULIDY
suonenadxa 03 Buinmiopiad s)assy

payiuwod jepded wosSH$y

2UN[ OF uo padinboe s)asse pPoos Jo uolg T°T1$

311lvddn 13SSsv
*FAUNLNIA LNIOC

618y NIl



Bupueul4-ay
UoIesI}LINDAS
Buipea]

suondo 1xg

.ppe anjea juowobeuepn
(winwaad oljonyaod odew) uoissatduwod ajed de)

jennualod apisdn

Xe) Joye ‘9461 AlNbo AJRUIPIO U0 YY1

peaids pisiA ul paXo0oT

pabpay 1gap 2SIN0D31 UOU ‘94, G/ 0} pabeionaT]

SJURUDA0D BUOIIS YlIM ‘SMopysed ajgelis

ADIALVUILS
ANIWISIANI
FANLNIA LNIOC

618vE ON 3l
- fuedwo)

PO T 14O



1934enb yjinoy ajepdn oiep
S00Z 22 dn doj 30 asn ajedidnuy
uonenobau Japun suonisinboe (xoadde) uoliq s 1$
900¢ 23Q Aq Buysaaul Afjnj jo juspyuo)
Uol|iq 9°9$ - 19baey aunusA Juior
a39 pue 1d5 usamiaq juawubije buoas
poojsiopun pue paadbe sj020304d / sassadodd jeaosddy
s21693e4]S JUBWISDAUL 01]0)310d Ul JUSWDAJOAUL JO [9A3] YDBIH
soljojyi1od Buljquasse / soiljojyiod uo Buissndog

satyunyioddo jo suljadid aAisualxg

paJdinboe sjasse uoliq T'1$

ANIT3dId AL

618%€ ON T4

PRI 34 140 - veduo



Ajleoo} pajnidal 6ulaq jjels aanesIuIpy
(Z - 989 T -~ LdD) SP1IULS Y10q WO} SJUSWPUOIIS
aoejd ul 3nd Buloq swaysAs ‘ajdoad
paysiqeise Ajnua (binoquaxn) :mmno»:m,_

AJud a3es0dio)
paysijqelso sjod0jouad / sassaroud bunesado
sjudunuiodde umoug g yd203qeg € pue 1do €

99110 24NJUSA JUlO[

ajeundoadde asaym Bunsisse swed) oljosyiod 145

pajuioddy 1SAjeuy Juswlsonul
pPaisii MHoYsS adoang ‘sobeuep) JUSWISOAUL
pajuioddy pajutodde Ar ‘19beuep |RIDUDD

wea] 1d9

WO41VY1d ONILYYIdO
FANLNIA LNIOL

618YE ON O

P Y Lg9) - Amedwo)



iies

-

[Seasg

R
RRR
\‘?\:@%\\t \
X R
N

X N
N

RN
R

R
N
N
R
s

Mplanned commun

equity investment in JV and acquisition of

El Questro Resort

D
N

N
R
AN )
R
N
R

R
AR

Industrial

assets*
Core Portfolio $8.7 billion

ASSET
JV investment represents 5% total investment

Z
2
®
Q
X
<
i
o
0

GPT

618vE ON T4
powwr] Ty LdD - Aweduio))



Y

=
. 4
77 \N\M\N\w\w

.

3

JIVi3H

Ty



wswidoaap AQ paloedut saajuad BUIPNPIXT

sbuijlq Jo o410 sied.ly

Y19 9, T ueyl ssaj Aouedep

MO] saeadde pue ybiy Aduednod

%G T 1t S1500 Aduednddo Ajjepnads jeuoibay
0CcS’‘6$ 10 uibs/sajes Ajjenads jeuoiboy
%S"9 dn wbs/1vi Ajjedads

%+t € dn wbs/1vW 213udd |ejoL

+S3Nsad bunesado pue sajes buolls

(11_412A0 %1 0T) i YHM 1| %1 dn sawodu]

0I7041380d
TIVLIY :S1TNS3AH A3

6185¢ ON 3]

panan Y 149 - Awredwo)



RN
R
RRTHw
AN

RN Y
R
R RSN
SRR

apd
c
0
£
o
°
0
>
o
o
o
c
o
o
e
7

Pipeline

618p€ ON oM
paviyT A 10 - Auedio)

200

7

on,
4

A
tod?

P
poweey
Fain
\m

”
2o

oo S

2




MELBOURNE CENTRAL

618%¢ ON 31
pawwt'] T 14O - Awedino)




618v¢ ON oIl

pamrT Y LdO - Auedwop



wd
=
!
=
17
[+ 4

618PE ON 3114
PN Ty 14D - Sueduo)




2J4enbsg
UMO]ISaIRYD

.

341U jrUOIDDY
liIH 25N0Y

24enbg
anyuede

ezZeld Yludd

00< £00C

R
SR

R
N
SR

D
B
NN

SR

X
N

N

B
R

R

[eqjuad
QULINOG|o

002
auldid

Juswdojonaq Huons

618%€ ON 3T

AT Y 140 - Auedio))



421440

618bE ON o[t3

PATIT TY 14D - Awedino)

o



(Buiuiewal s100|) 234431) Aemuadpun Buised

(S00Z pud) 9|npayds jo peaye uonaidwo)
¢ abeis Mied bulped

s1e3A 1°9 wWJid) dsed] obeiday

ajoisd Andxo ases| ajgesbeur)y
(€dq) wbs 000’6 10} eljR4ISNY Oy YIMm Swid] padiby

wbs 000'ST 19A0 podabe suwia)
S0 @2ung o3 pased| wbs 000'T9

0% t6 01 Pasealoul AbuednddQ
(11B12A0 9% € ) I YUM 41 %t 0 dn swodu]

321440 S11NS3d A3

6187E ON 3

- fuedwo)

pawrT Y 1dD



€ 9be1s queyd Huilleq s3pnPRx3 «

%8'E1 .
%0 0T

~%0°0¢€ %

%
Y

4 %0°0b

~%0°0S

A

Yol LS

ealy AqQ oljojuod

+%0°09

«G00Z 2un[ Q€ eady AQ 3jijoid Adx3 ases 2210

IT7I40dd AUIdX3

618YE ON Alld

pay] Ty 14O - Aveduo)



WSIYNOLl/7310H

6185E ON 91t

Iy Y 149 - Awediio)



%T'E+
%66+
(%8'v)
%T'v+

2WODUT 1dD
2jey wooy

plos s1ybIN wooy
onuanay

ADUPAS uojetsys AQg Sjuiod 1no-

%6'9T+
%0'9+
%<L°6+

%T'ET+

SWIODUT 1dD
ajey wooy

pPlos s1ybiN wooy
2NU3AIY

J0SOY MO0y SIoAY

(11_42A0 %91 ) 11 YIM 1] %G €T dn awodu! 01]04340d

SL1NS3ay
ONILVIIdO DNOULS

6185¢ ON 2t

Kuedwon)

pamnT T4 14D



uonisinboe o13sand |3 yjim pasueyud 01j04310d
SUOIJIPUOD J1ISAUWOP Heam Aq pajyeduwr

pajelB6aju A[Inissaddns 01]0§310d

%0'T+ 23ey wooy
(%t L) plos sybIN wooy
(%g'S) snuanay

01}0J140d SobpoT

| SNOILISINODV LN3ADIY

618bE ON 314

- Auedwop

PO T4 14D



NAVd SSANISNG
/IVIYd1SNANI

618p¢ ON It

pawr] Ay LdD - Aueduod



9ALIQ 9341b14 G pue § pend

aseda] [euiwial OBd

(wbs 00Z’ZZ) sidjewjaqgen

(wbs 00£'v£) 213ua) uonNqLIISIA |euoneN JBAW S310D
UoBUIOS Measny

SIE9A G ~ WD) 9sea| obelaae buoT

(sosea} pue] "|pul) 9%6'86 ~ Aduedndoo ybiH

(HBJ2A0 9%6°ST) I UM 1| %E ™+ dn awodu]
MAVd SSANISNG

/IVIYdLISNANI
:SLINSIY A3

618FE ON 9

PN T 4D - Lueduwo)




77
o

7

1
S

s

IS
1S

SIILINNWWOD Nvain
G3INNVIdH3LSVYIN

o,

6185 ON 914

PWIT Y 1O - Aweduio))



SRZR|d UBPOAM PUB UIIUI4 Ui S1S243U) JO 3jes 243 10y paisnipe sainbid 190N

paysijqeisa Ajijoey oing wE09
onsst NLIW WO0E$
uoneinp puaixs 0} Abajeuis
0/ "0 3B JSDIDJUI IAIPIDLD JUDLIND
(uonw p8v$ xoidde jusjeainbe anv) oin3g uoljjiw QO
any uoljjiw 0ze'zc$
uoljiiq 8'z$ sbuimodioqg |ejol

(%0 HWI}) %SG 0€ 40 bulesn
uolllq £°6% s1asse [ejoL

\\\\

iy ANIWIADVNVYN TVYLIdVYVD

6187 ON I

pawwr] 7Y 140 - Avedwo)



(s10309s /sassauisng) saniunjioddo yymoub jeuonippe AJjiuapi

butuonisod 149
uriojield juswabeuew spuny jo judwiysijqelsy

speaids Buipuny uir pa>joo|
/ smopysed ajqels ‘sjosse auipdid HuildsAu0D U0 SND0J panuiuo)

a4NjuUaA Juior
sjudwdojanap pue suonsinboe ybnoayl uoisuedxy

SW.IN)3ad AP 0] Juawabeuew aaoe bulobup

oljoJyiod 240D

\\x\\\\\%

7
22

NI

618%€0

panwy] 34 LdO - Avedwio)

ADILVULS 1dD




S1S2040J) pue ABa31eu]S U0 JDAIIRP 03 Moesy uQ
2J0UsS}J0 pue Ajjesnsawop sspiunpoddo yamoldo
PossoJboud ||]om JUBWISIAUL A[

buipaadcoid uonisuely yjoows

buo.als aouewiojiad oljojyiod 240D

AUVYIWKHWNS NI

618YE ON 9THd

pawair] T4 14O - Avedwo)



G,
A

7%
P

& N

W AT
Shnhuasn
R R T Y
AR A R R RN

618%E ON 211
P Ty 149 - Avedio)

QUESTIONS |




GPT

4 August 2005

The Manager

Companies Section

Auslralian Stock Exchange Limited (Sydney)
20 Bridge Strest

SYDNEY NSW 2000

By electronic lodgement

Dear Sir

GPT GROUP

1. Half Year Results for period to 30 June 2005

GFT RE Umited

ABN 27 107 426 504
s Responsible Enlity of
General Propeity Trast

Level 52

MLC Centre

16-29 Mertin Place
Sydngy NSW 2000
Austratia

GPT Securityholder
Service Centre
Freecat

1800 625 085
Facsimile
0292259318

gpidgpt com.ay

WA P, oAl

GPT releases the atiached statement regarding the GPT Group’s results for the six months
to 30 June 2005. Also attached are audited financial statements of the GPT Group for the
six months to 30 June 2005 and ASX Appendix 4D.

2. June Quarter Distribution

GPT advises the income distribution for the quarter ended 30 June 2005 will be 5.7 cents per
stapled securily. This comprises:

Trust Distribution 5.7 cents
Company Dividend Nil
Total Amount Distributed 5.7 cents

(a) Trust Distribution

A distribution for the three months ended 30 June 2005 of 5.7 cents per security will be paid
by the Trust on 26 August 2005 (the distribution for the three months ended 30 June 2004
was 5.5 cents per security and the distribution for the three months ended 31 March 2005
was 5.7 cents per security),

{b) Income Tax Deferred Component

The distribution advice for the June quarter will advise that no component of the distribution
is tax deferred.



Company - GPT RE Limited
File No 34819

(c) Company Dividend
No dividend will be paid for this period.
(d) Books Closing Date

In accordance with Listing Rule 3A(5), we give formal notice that the register of security
holders will close at 5.00pm, 15 August 2005 for the purpose of determining those security
holders entitled to participate In the distribution for the quarter ended 30 June 2005, payable
an 26 August 2005.

Documents will be accepted for registration until 5.00 pm on the books closing date at the
Sydney Register only:

Securities Registration Services
ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited
Level 8, 580 George Strest
SYDNEY NSW 2000

Yours faithfully
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GPT

THE GPT GROUP ANNOUNCES

Results for the six months to 30 June 2005
4 August 2005

Strong performance from core portfolio positions the new GPT Group

to deliver on growth strategy and forecasts

GPT today announced a solid operating result and successful implementation of the
internalisation proposal and associated joint venture investment. While the benefit of the
internalisation of management and investment in the Joint Venture with Babcock &
Brown did not impact financial performance in this period (as it only commenced on 30
June 2005), ongoing robust performance from GPT’s established domestic portfolio was
achieved. Conseguently, the Group is well positioned 4t0 achieve the significant

increases in income to investors forecast over 2005 and 2006.

While reported profit after tax under the new International Financial Reporting Standards
(A-IFRS) is $66.2 million, a more accurate reflection of GPT's underlying performance is
the distribution paid to securityholders which is comparable to previous reported profit.
This figure increased by 4.6% on the previous period to $230.3 million (up from $219.8
million in 2004).

A payment to securityholders of 5.7 cents per security (cps) for the June quarter was
announced, taking the distribution for the six months to June 2005 to 11.4 ¢cps. This

represents an increase of 4.6% on the distribution for the six months to June 2004,

Underlying earnings per security increased by 3% (compared to the previous

corresponding period), in line with GPT's growth target for the core portfolio”.

* Excludes the impact of performance fee paid in 2004, costs associated with the Stockiand takeover offer and
internalisation proposal. Also excludes the impact of the adoption of A-IFRS on the financial statements. Earnings per
security is before fair value adjustments, recegnition of rent frees, amortisation of lease incentives, profit on disposal

of properties, costs associated with internalisation and finance costs to securityholders.
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CEO of the GPT Group, Mr Nic Lyons, said solid performance had been achieved,
reflecting an excellent result from GPT’s property portfolio and the positive impact of

recent acquisitions and successfully completed developments.

“This is our first report under A-IFRS and as an independent stapled entity, so our

financial performance is presented in a format that is different from previous results.”

“Notwithstanding these changes in presentation, this is a strong result which continues

to build upon our earnings and distribution growth over the past few years.”

“Not only has GPT delivered a sound result from its traditional operations but, over the
period, we implemented the internalisation proposal and joint venture investment,
effectively positioning GPT to deliver a 16.5% increase in distributions next year and

substantial distribution growth in the years ahead.”

“The high quality of GPT's $8.7 billion core Australian portfolio and the benefit of focused
active management and development is illustrated by an increase in income from each
of the portfolios, with significant increases in income from the Hotel/Tourism Portfolio
and the Office Portfolio displaying resilience in difficult market conditions. The Retail and
Industrial/Business Park Portfolios continued growth in income, reflecting not only the

quality of existing assets but the benefit of recent developments,” Mr Lyons said.

Internaiisation Update
The internalisation of management is virtually complete, with GPT operating from new

premises in the MLC Centre since 6 June 2005.
Transition costs were in line with the forecast outlined in the Notice of Meeting and

Explanatory Memorandum (EM) dated 2 May 2005. In addition, a payment to Lend

Lease, of $16.5 million, was well below the $45 million contemplated in this document.

Page 2
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This transition will be finalised on 15 August when the remaining members of the retail
team transfer to GPT with the property management of GPT’s 10 fully owned shopping

centres and 11 Homemaker assets.

‘“We have an outstanding team of committed property professionals who are
experienced with GPT’s assets. On completion of the transition, we will have around 200
staff, including a retail team delivering property, leasing and development management,”

Mr Lyons said.

On 1 July 2005 GPT announced implementation of the Penrith and Woden Plaza
transactions outlined in the EM. Westfield has replaced Lend Lease as manager of
these assets. GPT will continue as a 50% owner in each of these centres. The option
agreement in respect of Sunshine Plaza remains subject to certain preconditions which

have not been met.

The Joint Venture agreement with Babcock & Brown was implemented as planned and
the Joint Venture (JV) acquired its first assets — consisting of six German residential and
office assets and one retail asset in Prague with a value of $1.1 billion, on 30 June 2005.
GPT's current equity investment in the JV represents approximately 5% of the Group’s

total property investments.

The General Manager for the JV, Neit Tobin, has been appointed and two additional
staff are being recruited to complete GPT’s resourcing. The pipeline of acquisitions, a
key determinant of the future success of the JV, is strong, with $1.5 billion in assets
currently under negotiation and a range of additional opportunities progressively being

reviewed.

“Although it is early days, we have been impressed with the quality of the opportunities
available to the JV and our belief in the ability of the JV to deliver value to GPT investors
continues to grow. We have already established an excellent working relationship with
Babcock & Brown and have confidence in the platform they have developed in global

property markets.”

Page 3
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“We remain confident of having the JV fully invested in line with our target of December
2006,” Mr Lyons said.

Mr Lyons said GPT was in great shape to deliver on the forecasts for distributions of
13.0 cps for the six months to 31 December 2005 and 27.5 cps for the year ending 31
December 20086, as outlined in GPT's recent EM.

“In addition to performance from GPT’s quality core portfolio, developments, fee savings
as a result of the internalisation and the benefit of the joint venture investment will assist
in driving returns to investors. Investors will also benefit from the opportunity to recycle
capital and the broader range of opportunities available to GPT as a stapled security,”

Mr Lyons said.

As outlined in the EM, cost savings have been achieved as a result of the internalisation
and GPT’'s management expense ratio, previously a range of 45-60 basis points under

Lend Lease’s management, has now been reduced to approximately 25 basis points.

Core Portfolio Performance

Despite a range of distractions in the six months to June 2005, a number of
opportunities that will contribute fo medium-term eamings growth from the core portfolio
were identified and implemented. The core portfolio will continue to represent at least

85% of GPT's total property assets and is a major driver of future performance.

GPT's large-scale retail development pipeline made considerable progress. At the $260
million Melbourne Central redevelopment, only one store remains to be leased. The
leisure and entertainment precinct, which was damaged by fire during construction, will

be complete in September 2005.

A major expansion of Penrith Plaza will be complete in November this year and, at
Macarthur Square, the first stage of the development is due to open in time for
Christmas, with the second stage expected to be finalised early in 2006. Future
developments, including the Rouse Hill Town Centre and an expansion of Charlestown

Square, also achieved key milestones during the period.

Page 4




Company - GPT RE Lirmited
File No 34819

In the Office Portfolio, work is progressing ahead of schedule on the third and final stage
of the Darling Park Complex in Sydney and additional leasing has resulted in only three

floors remaining to be leased.

The Industrial/Business Park Portfolio achieved additional growth with a major lease
commitment to Coles Myer for a new 74,700 sgm national distribution centre at the
Austrak Business Park in Somerton, Victoria. Combined with a lease to P&0O Ports for
the intermodal terminal and a commitment by Labelmakers to a 22,200 sqm facility, 60%
of the 100 hectare park will be developed.

Operationally, the Group’s property portfolios continue to deliver solid returns and
income growth, with each portfolio increasing income over the previous corresponding
period. High productivity levels, reasonable occupancy costs and almost full occupancy
across the Retail Portfolio position it for continued robust growth over the medium term.
Income from the Hotel/Tourism Portfolio increased significantly (up 13.5% on a like for
like basis) despite weaker than expected domestic travel, as increased inbound tourism
contributed to strong revenue growth. from Ayers Rock Resort, GPT's major tourism

asset.

Whilst demand across the office sector has been inconsistent, GPT's Office Portfolio
has maintained its occupancy level and delivered income growth of 4.3%. The
acquisition of the third stage of the Darling Park Complex reinforces management’s
focus on upgrading the Portfolio to contemporary assets. The Industrial/Business Park
Portfolio delivered solid income growth while the acquisition of 5§ Figtree Drive in
Sydney’s Homebush Bay (announced on 1 August), has expanded the development

pipeline in this sector.

Capital Management
GPT maintains its strong balance sheet. As at 30 June 2005 (adjusted for the sale of

interests in Woden and Penrith Plazas) GPT had fotal assets of $9.3 billion and
borrowings of $2.8 billion, or 30.5% of total assets. This level of borrowing remains
betow GPT's maximum borrowing limit (of 40% of total tangible assets) and is also

below the LPT sector average of 37.4%.
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Following the implementation of the internalisation, GPT issued $300 million in Medium
Term Notes (MTNs), and also established a 800 million Euro debt facility. The proceeds
of the MTN issue and the proceeds from the sale of interests in Penrith and Woden
Plazas along with a recent drawdown of 300 million under the Euro debt facility have
been used to repay short term debt and to fund GPT's equity investment in the JV with
Babcock & Brown.

The pricing and term of GPT's MTN issue (at 47 basis points above the relevant
benchmark) confirmed the attractiveness of GPT's debt and the Group’s ability to

access competitive funding.

The current weighted average interest rate of GPT's debt is 6.2% (after fees and

margins).

Yield
The yield on the closing price yesterday of $3.84 was 7.16% (based on forecast 2006

distributions).

NTA
Net Tangible Asset Backing (NTA) per security increased to $3.03, an increase of
1 cent on the 31 December 2004 NTA.

Security Price
GPT securities closed at $3.65 on 30 June 2005, up from $3.49 at 30 June 2004. The

price performance of GPT securities since the internalisation has been strong, with the

price closing at $3.84 on 3 August.

GPT's full year accumulation (security price movement and income) return for the year
to 30 June 2005 was 11.2%, which was below the S&P/ASX Property 200 Accumulation
Index return of 18.1%. GPT delivered a one year accumulation return of 33.6% for the
year ended December 2004.
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Mr Lyons said he was optimistic about GPT’s outlook and remained confident in the

ability of the Group to deliver the forecasts outlined in the recent EM.

“For the first time in over a year, we are not dealing with external issues. We have a

clear strategy and direction, an energetic and committed team and complete control

over our ability to deliver improved returns to investors. This is an exciting period for

GPT and one which should deliver significant improvements in retumns to our investors,”

Mr Lyons said.

ENDS

For further information contact:

Nic Lyons Michael O’Brien

CEO Chief Operating Officer
02 8239 565 02 8239 3544

0401 719 899 0417 691 028

Donna Byme

Head |Investor Relations
and Corporate Affairs

02 8239 3515

0401 711 542
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Retail Portfolio

Head of Retail for GPT, Mr Mark Fookes, said performance from GPT's Retail Portfolio
" in the six months to 30 June 2005 had been strong, with the Portfolio delivering income
growth of 4% on a comparable basis and GPT's shopping centres continuing to trade

above industry sales productivity benchmarks.

Regional specialty sales of $9,520 per sqgm across GPT’s shopping centres remain well
above the industry average and specialty accupancy costs, at 14.5%, are reascnable,
enhancing the prospects for continued rental income growth. Total centre sales per
square metre across GPT's shopping centres increased by 3.4% and specialty sales per
square metre were up 6.5% in the year to 30 June 2005.

GPT’s shopping centres continue to have high occupancy, with less than 1% of gross

lettable area (GLA) vacant.

Transactions

Construction of the 16,000 sgm second stage of Fortitude Valley Homemaker City, in
Brisbane, at a cost of $53 million, was completed in July. The remaining component of
the first stage of the Centre, strategically located between the two stages of the
development already owned by GPT, was acquired in March 2005 for $35.6 million.
Combined with GPT's original investment, GPT now has a $122 million bulky goods
centre of significant scale, consisting of Homemaker retail and commercial facilities with

associated car parking.

Following the sale of two smaller bulky goods centres last year (located at Springwood,
Qid and Prospect, NSW), GPT continued to rationalise the Portfolio with the sale of
Homemaker City Underwood. The sale price of $19 million was well above the book
value at 31 December 2004 of $13 million. The asset, which was a smailer non-core
component of the Portfolio, had been acquired with the original homemaker portfolio in

November 2001 for approximately $10.5 million.
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On 1 July 2005, GPT implemented with Westfield the transaction regarding Woden
Plaza outlined in the Notice of Meeting and Explanatory Memorandum dated 2 May
2005. Both parties are proceeding to implement the transaction in relation to Penrith

Plaza.

Development Update
Across the Retail Portfolio a key driver of future growth is the significant pipeline of

current and future projects with a potential value of over $1 billion aver the next four
years. These projects will supplement the growth being achieved by the Portfolio in
future years.

The major redevelopment of Melbourne Central was largely complete in December 2004
and the entertainment precinct, which includes the cinemas and restaurants, will be
complete in September 2005. Only one store remains to be leased (less than 1% of
income). More than 260 of the 287 tenancies are open and trading, including mini-major
retailers such as Borders, Coles, Freedom and Bay Swiss, combined with some
innovative retail concepts. The project is forecast to achieve a stabilised yield of

approximately 8%.

The $70 million expansion of Penrith Plaza (GPT's 50% share) is progressing well, and
is on track for completion in November this year. Income is approximately 97%

committed and the project is on track to achieve a yield in excess of the targeted 8%.

The $109 million (GPT's 50% share) expansion of Macarthur Square is also progressing
well with income 78% committed. The first stage is due to open in November 2065 and
the second stage of the development, which includes the Town Square precinct, will

open in early 2008. A year one yield of 8% is anticipated.
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The precinct plan for the new Town Centre at the Rouse Hill Regional Centre was
approved on 26 July 2005, paving the way for the development to proceed and
construction to commence early in 2006. The Town Centre is one of the last major
greenfield regional retail opportunities within the Sydney metropolitan area and
represents a unique opportunity for the Group to develop a new retail precinct as part of
a planned community. GPT will develop and own the Town Centre (shopping centre)
and is in joint venture with Lend Lease to develop the remaining facilities and the

residential component of this $1.2 billion project.

At Charlestown Square, masterpianning is advanced for a proposed expansion of the
47,000 sgm Centre to 80,000 sgm. An extensive community and authority engagement
program has already been conducted and Lake Macquarie Council has formally
committed to discussions regarding land transactions required for the development to

proceed.

“We have an excellent porifolic of Retail assets which have benefited from intensive
management and prudent ongoing development. Redevelopments at Penrith Plaza,
Macarthur Square and Melbourne Central will complete over the next 12 months. These,
combined with future planned developments such as the expansion of Charestown
Square and the creation of a retail centre at Rouse Hill, will deliver further growth in the

medium term,” Mr Fookes said.

“Opportunities to extract future investment retumns through development of existing
assets will be a key focus of the retail team and we remain confident the Portfolio can

continue to deliver long term investment performance,” Mr Fookes said.

Office Portfolio _
Despite challenging market conditions, characterised by soft demand in the major
market of Sydney, GPT’s Office Portfolic performed well, delivering income growth and

increasing occupancy.
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Across GPT's $3.2 billion Office Portfolio, over 61,000 sqm was leased in the six months
to June 2008, resulting in an overall occupancy of 84.0% for the Portfolio. This
represented a slight increase in the occupancy at December and is above market

occupancy of 81.9%.

Mr Tony Cope, GPT's Office Portfolio Manager, said that GPT continued to be positive
about the future of the Office Portfolio and growth in the medium term, despite the
ongoing uncertainty about the timing of a sustainable improvement in market conditions,
particularly in Sydney. GPT retains a long average lease term of 6.1 years and limited

short-term expiry across the Portfolio.

“The quality of our Office Portfolio and our success in continuing to lease space across
our assets underpinned solid performance from the Portfolio. Economic fundamentals
are positive and should support a return to more favourable conditions across the
markets with commensurate uplift in the returns from GPT’s Office Portfolic,” Mr Cope

said.

Acquisitions and developments

The third stage of the Darling Park Complex in Sydney, acquired by GPT in April 2004,
is due to be completed at the end of this year, ahead of schedule. The development,
anticipated to provide a first year yield of 7.2%, consists of an 18-level (30,000 sqm)
office tower and 160 car spaces. On 2 August, GPT announced terms had been agreed
with Rabobank to lease 9,000 sgm of the high-rise space, leaving only three floors to be

leased over the remainder of the development.

Leasing
Significant leasing was undertaken across the Portfolio, with over 61,000 sqm leased or

renewed across GPT's office assets in the six months to 30 June 2005 and terms were

agreed over a further 15,000 sgm. This leasing, undertaken across a range of assets

within the Portfolio, included:
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¢ At Australia Square, in Sydney, occupancy increased to 71.6%, up from 65.2% at
December with 6,700 sgm leased or renewed, including leases to Westpoint
Corporation (1,600 sgm), Thomson Playford Services (1,600 sqm) and Jones Day
Pty Ltd (350 sgqm).

¢ At the HSBC Centre, also in Sydney, a lease over 13,000 sgm to HSBC for a

term of six years.

« At Melbourne Central, leases to Telstra (over 8,000 sqm from 1 November 2005)
and the ACCC (3,000 sqm from 1 January 2006) reduced short-term expiry risk at

this asset. The asset currently has only 1% vacancy.

“While we have some leasing challenges, we are continuing to focus on expiry across
our assets. Overall, we are pleased with the performance and position of the Portfolio,
although future performance will depend on improvements in demand over 2005 and
2006."

“Positive leading indicators in terms of job advertisements, employment gains and
heightened business investment are all pointing in the right direction, so we are
optimistic. The performance of the Portfolio in the medium term is expected to improve
as office markets strengthen and we benefit from the completion of Darling Park 3,” said
Mr Cope.

Hotel / Tourism Portfolio
Mr Bruce Morris, GPT's Hotel/Tourism Portfolio Manager, said that a strong increase in
inbound tourism had assisted GPT's Portfolio, with income at Ayers Rock Resort up by

almost 17%.

Income to GPT from the Portfolio was up 13.5% on a like for like basis.
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“Inbound tourism to Australia continued its recovery and GPT’s Portfolio profited from
this upturn with increased revenue at Ayers Rock Resort, the Four Points by Sheraton
and Brisbane Holiday Inn, driving improvements in income at these assets. We are
anticipating improvements in performance fo continue as we see the benefits of ongoing

growth in inbound tourism,” Mr Morris said.

The Four Points by Sheraton continued to increase room rate over the year and Ayers
Rock Resort exhibited a return to growth following the negative impact of external
shocks in previous years. At Ayers Rock Resort, occupancy increased by aimost 5% on
the previous period, to 60%, and the asset retains capacity for further growth as the

inbound market continues to gain momentum.

The performance of the P&O resorts (now Voyages Lodges), acquired by GPT in July
2004, was adversely impacted by relatively flat domestic tourism. Opportunities to
improve performance exist through increasing the proportion of inbound visitation at
these assets. Voyages has now fully integrated these properties into its operations,
delivering on forecast cost savings and providing the potential to market the assets in
key inbound markets, a major driver of perfarmance for Ayers Rock Resort. The Lodges
portfolio, which includes Dunk, Bedarra, Brampton, Heron, Lizard and Wilson Islands as
well as Silkky Oaks and Cradle Mountain Lodge, was recently expanded with the
acquisition in July 2005 of El Questro Resort in Western Australia. El Questro is located
in a unigue natural environment, the Kimberley region, and comprises 73
accommodation units. The Resort was acquired for $17.4 million and is anticipated to

deliver a year one vield of approximately 10%.

“We continue to be optimistic about the long-term outiook for inbound tourism to
Australia and the prospects for GPT’s Hotel/Tourism Portfolio, which has an unrivalled
position in the nature-based tourism sector and a range of quality assets in major

Australian tourism locations,” Mr Morris said.
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Industrial / Business Park Portfolio
GPT's Industrial/Business Park Portfolio grew to $354 million at 30 June 2005 and

additional growth was secured with a recent acquisition at Homebush Bay and

significant leasing at the Austrak Business Park in Somerton, Victoria.

Mr Victor Georos, Industrial/Business Park Portfolioc Manager, said the Portfolio was
benefiting from its strategy of positioning for growth through development with significant
income growth secured through recent leasing. Since January 2005, over 347,000 sgm
was leased or renewed at GPT’s assets. This included major leases to P&O Ports Ltd
(of the terminal at the Austrak Business Park in Somerton on a 10 year term) and a
precommitment by Coles Myer, announced in July, to the construction of a new 74,700

sqm national distribution facility, also at Somerton, on a 20 year term.

Portfolio occupancy is currently at 98.5% (including land leases) and the average lease

term is 5.4 years (by income).

“We have been very active in securing future growth for the Portfolio over the last few
months and are advanced with future expansion opportunities. Our presence at
Homebush Bay in NSW has been further extended with the lodgement of a development
application for the last stage of the Quad development and we also announced the
acquisition of 5 Figtree Drive on 1 August, enhancing the long term expansion potential

in this precinct,” Mr Georos said.

“In addition to quality existing assets and planned developments, the Portfolio retains
further expansion land across a range of assets which will facilitate medium term

growth,” Mr Georos said.

Masterplanned Urban Communities
Further progress was made on both the Rouse Hill Regicnal Centre (NSW) and the Twin

Waters development (Qld) over the first half of 2005.
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The precinct masterplan for Rouse Hill Town Centre, which includes the retail Town
Centre and associated infrastructure, was approved in July 2005, paving the way for
commencement of the project in early 2006.

A development application for Stage | of the Twin Waters development, in Mudjimba,
Queensiand, which increased density has now been approved. The existing Resort is
trading well and a significant profit was achieved on the sale of the Golf Course during

the period.
Both projects are long-term projects with the ability to stage supply in response to

demand, and are continuing to progress. Major works are anticipated to commence

next year at both properties.
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Financial Summary

Earnings & Distributions
Earnings (cents per security)
Distribution {cents per security)
Tax advantaged

Total Income

Retail

Office

HotelfTourism

Industrial/Business Park
Masterplanned Urban Communities

Assets

Total assets

Borrowings

Debt to total assets
Securities on issue (‘000)
Net asset backing/security
Security price

Retail

Total value

Portfolio alfocation (by value)
Total centre sales per sqm growth
Specialty occupancy costs
Occupancy (retail centres)

Office

Total value

Portfolio allocation (by value)
Portfolio occupancy

Hotel/Tourism
Total value
Portfolio allocation (by value)

industrial/Business Park
Total value

Portfolio allocation (by value)
Portfolio occupancy

Masterplanned Urban Communities

Total value

Equity Investment in JV

*

6 months to June 2004

109
10.9
44 9%

$144.0m*
$109.2m
$24.6m

$10.7m

$1.2m

At 31 Dec 2004

$9,097.0m
$2,698.6m
29.7%
2,016,717
$3.02
$3.74

$4,749.5m
53%

4.4%
14.2%
89%

$3.078.9m
34%
94%

$776.9m
9%

$327.8m
4%
100%
$36.1m

N/a

Company - GPT RE Limited
File No 34819

6 months to June 2005

11.4
11.4
0%

$159.0m

$113.9m

$36.0m

$12.4m

$2.2m

At 30 June 2005**

$9,316.9m
$2,843.0m
30.5%
2,016,717
$3.03
$3.65

$4,312.6m
47%

3.4%
14.4%
99%

$3,155.7m
35%
94%

$831.6m
9%

$354.0m
4%

97%
$41.0m

$446.5m

Income includes ground rent and income from deposits under retail property JVIA (Sunshine Plaza).

**  Adjusted for the $17 4 million acquisition of £l Questro Resort in July 2005 and the sale of 50% interests in Woden

ang Penrith Plazas on 1 July 2005.

ENDS
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Directors' Report

The directors of GPT RE Limited, the Responsible Entity of General Properly Trust, present their report together with
the interim financial reports of the GPT Group comprising General Property Trust and its controlled entities for the
half-year ended 30 June 2005 and the Review Report thereon,

Directors

The following persons were directors of GPT RE Limited during the reporting period:

Peter Joseph (Chairman)* Eric Goodwin*

Malcolm Latham* Nic Lyons (appointed 2 June 2005)
len Martin (appointed 2 June 2005) Ken Moss*

Brian Norris* Elizabeth Nosworthy*

* These persons were also directors of GPT Management Limited {now called Lend Lease Funds Management
Limited), the Responsible Entity of General Property Trust until GPT RE Limited replaced GPT Management Limited
on 8 June 2005. i

The GPT Group {GPT)

Following unitholders approval on 2 June 2005, a stapled entity (the GPT Group (GPT)) was formed on 10 June
2005 by stapling together the units in General Property Trust {the Trust) to the shares in GPT Management Holdings
Limited (the Compeany}. The consolidated results reflect the performance of the Trust and ils subsidiaries from 1
January 2005 and the addition of the Company and its subsidiaries from the date of consolidation, 2 June 2005 to 30
June 2005.

Principal Actlvity
The principal activity of GPT is real estate invesiment.
Review of Operations and Changes in the State of Affairs

First Financial Report under the Australian equivalents 1o intemational Financial Reperting Standards (AIFRSs).

This interim financial report is the first GPT interim financial report 1o be prepared in accordance with AIFRSs. AASB
1 First-time Adoption of Austrafian Equivalents to Infernational Financial Reporting Slandards has been applied in
preparing these financial statements. When preparing the GPT interim financial report for the half-year ended 30
June 2005, management has amended certain accounting and valuation methods applied in the previous AGAAP
financial statements to comply with AIFRS. The comparative figures were restated to reflect these adjustments.
Reconciliations and descriptians of the effect of transition from previous AGAAP to AIFRS on GPT's equity and net
profit are set out in Note 18.

Finandial Results

On the implementation of AIFRS, securityholder interests wera reguired to be accounted for as lizbilities. Following a
change in the constitution on 2 June 2005, securifyholder interests are now dlassified as equity. As a consequencs,
amounts accruing to securityholders until 2 June 2005 were accounted for as finance costs. Sincs 2 June 2005,
amounts accruing 10 securityholders are accounied for as profit or movements in reserves. Therefore, total amounts
acoruing to securityholders recognised in the Condensed Income Statement for the pericd to 30 June 2005 are
$271.7m. This compiises profit afier tax of $66.2m and finance costs of $205.5m. The period 1o 30 June 2004
comprised entirely of finance costs of $230.3m.
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Directors' Report (Continued)

The following table sets out a recongiliation of securityholder interests at the start of the period to those at the end of
the period.

20 Jun 2005 30 Jun 2004

$m Sm

Securityholder interesfs at the beginning of the period (liabifity) 8,074.5 §308.4
Securityholder interests at the end of the period (equity) 6,123.4 5519.2
Increase 48.9 210.8
The increase in securityholder interests comprises:
Finarice cosis to securityholders 20585 230.3
Profit after income tax ‘ 66.2 -

271.7 2303
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 7.2 -
Securities issuwed - 2003
Less: amounts paid/payable to securityhoiders (230.0) (219.8)

488 210.8

Earnings per Security

The earnings per securty for the reporting period ended 30 June 2005 was 3.3 cents (Jun 2004; 0.0 cents)

The eamings per security before fair value adjustments, recognition of rent fregs, amortisation of lease incentives,
profit on disposal of properties, cosls assaciated with internalisation and finance costs to securityholders for the
reporting period ended 30 June 2005 was 11.4 cents (Jun 2004: 10.9 cents).

During the financial pericd, GPT acquired Homemaker City Fortitude Valley Stage 3, in Queensland. GPT also
acquired Brampton {sland and the right to operate Lizard Island Resort in Queensland from Voyages Hotels &
Resorts Pty Limited before taking control of the entity on 30 June 2008. In addition, Homemaker City Underwood, a
parce! of surplus land at Macarthur Square and a surplus property in Litle Lonsdale Street at Melbourne Central
were divested.

In June 2005, the GPT Group was formed by the stapling of the units in the Trust to the shares In the Company
following unitholder approval on 2 June 2005. The Trust and the Company entered into the Stapling Deed (on 2
June 2005) which sets out the terms of the relationship between the entities with respect {o the stapled securities.
The Stapling Deed ensures that the entities must operate on a co-operative basis for the henefit of holders of
Stapled Securities as a whole.

In conjunction with the stapling, the Company acquired GPT RE Limited to acl as the responsible entity of the Trust
Tollowing GPT Management Limited being replaced by GPT RE Limited as the rasponsible entity of the Trust.

On 30 June 2006, GPT entered into European Real Estate Joint Venture S.a.rJ, a joint verture with Babcock &
Brown Limited. The joint venture will seek to identify and invest in real estate opportunities which offer superior risk
adjusted retumns, and establish and manage third party funds.

Finance Costs and Distributions

The Responsible Entity of the Trust has determined the payment of finance costs and distributions for the reporting
period ended 30 Junse 2005 of 11.4 cents per unit { Jun 2004: 10.2 cents).
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Events Subsequent to Balance Date

Assel Sales

On 12 February 2005 GPT announced it had entered into condlitional contracls for the sale of part interests In
Penrith Plaza, Woden Plaza and Sunshine Plaza to Westfield as part of its intemalisation process. As at 30 June
2008, the sales of Penrith Plaza and Woden Plaza contacts had not yet been completed.

Al conditional requirements on the previously announced sale of 50% of GPT's interest In Woden Piaza in Canberra
were met by 1 July 2005 and as a consequence settlemant of $242m was received on that date. GPT also
proceaded to implement the transaction in relation to Pearith Plaza with $368.2m being received on 1 July 2005,

GPT is not obliged {o seli the interest in Sunshine Plaza unless certaln preconditions have been met. As at the date
of these financial statements those conditions have nol been met and GPT's intergst has not been sold.

Acquisitions

On 29 June 2005 GPT announced its intention to acquire the Ef Questro resort in Western Australia for $17.4m, this
acquisition was completed on 7 July 2005,

On 14 July 2005 GPT and its Austrak Business Park co-owner, Ausirak, reached agreement with Coles Myer to
develop a $100m national distribution centre for Coles Myer. GPT owns 50% of the business park and the project is
scheduled for completion during the first half of 2007,

On 1 August 2605 GPT announced the exchange of contracts for the purchase of § Figtree Drive, Homebush Bay
for $19.0m,

Rounciing of Amounts

The amounts disclosed in the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with Class Order 88/0100 Issued
by the Austrafian Securities & Investments Commission, pursuant to which, unless otherwise indicated, the amounts
in the Direclors' Report have been rounded 1o the nearest tenth of a million doilars.

ol

Dated at SYDNEY this 3/ Cdayof fhy /9 Jsf , 2005

Signed in accordance with a resclution of the directors,

irgcto . Director
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GPQ BOX 2650

SYDNEY NSW 1171

DX 77 Sydney

Australia

WWw.pwe.com/au
Telephone +61 2 8288 6000
Facsimile +61 2 8268 9999

Auditors’ Independence Declaration

As lead auditor for the review of the GPT Group (comprising General Property Trust and its
controlled entities) for the half year ended 30 June 2005, | deciare thal {o the best of my knowledge
and belief, the only contravention of:

a) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporalions Act 2601 in relation 1o the review
and
b) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the review;

is set out below.

On 26 July 2005 an employee of the firm who provided non-audit services to GPT during the
period, reported holding an immaterial investment in GPT through a self managed superannuation
fund. This investment was sold within 1 business day of reporting the holding to the firm.

This matter was identified as part of our on-geing quality control system. All reasonable steps wers
undertaken to ensure that the matter was resolved as soen as possible. | report that this matter has
been resolved, and in doing so do not believe the matter has impacted my objectivity and
impartiality for the purpose of this review.

This declaration is in respect of the GPT Group during the period.

Deutsch Sydney
Pariner 3 August 2005
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Liability is limited by the Accountant's Scheme under the Professional Standards Act 1884 (NSW)




Company -GPTREL

File No 34819
The GPT Group compdsing General Property Trust and its Controlled Entities
Condensed Income Statement
Half-Year ended 30 June 2005
Consolidated
30 Jun 2008 30 Jun 2004
Note $m $m
Revenue
Rent from invesiment properties 3455 3133
Met gain from fair value adjustments on invastment propeities 19 104.4 22.7
Interest - Joint venture Invesiment arrangements - 24
Interest - Cash and foans 4.9 25
Net gain on disposal of investment properties 9.3 -
income and fair value movements of assodiates and joint ventures 505 39.0
Total Revenue 514.8 379.8
Expenses
Rates, taxes and other property outgoings 76.1 71.8
Repairs and malntenancs 8.3 8.5
Provision for doubtiul debts 0.1 0.1
Responsible entity's fee 3 16.4 19.7
Management and administration costs 15 -
Audit and accounting fees 3 05 a5
Finance costs to financial insiitufions 74,2 §2.0
Financa costs lo securitynolders . 1218 205.5 230.3
Net lassf{gain) on remeasurement of intsrest rale derivatives to fair value 9.6 @.7)
Net foss on remeasurament of foreigi-exchange derivatives to fair value 7.0 .
Impairment loss 10.7 -
Costs assoclated with intemalisation 40.4 -
Other axpenses 19 2.9
Tolal Expenses 449.2 379.8
Protit before incoma tax 85.4 -
Income tax benefit / (expense) 0.8 -
Profit after income tax 66.2 -
Profit attributable to securttyholders of GPT 66.2 -
Centy Cents
Baske and diluted eamings per secunity 33 00
Basic earnings per security before falr vakue atjustments, recognition of rent fraes,
amortisaticn of leass incentives, profit on disposal of properties, costs assodated
with internalisation and finence costs to securityholders 114 10.8
The above Condensed Incowe Stalement should be read in conjunction with the eocompanying noles.
Reconciliation of amounts paidfpayabla fo securltyholders
Profit after income tax 66.2 .
Finance costs 1o securityholders 208.5 2303
Fair value adjustmants (82.6} {18.9)
Revenue adjustments 62 6.1
Nat gein on disposal of properiies (9.3) -
Costs gssociated with intemalisation 40.4 -
Other 3.9 -
Amounts payable to securityholders 230.3 2168
Unpaid entitliement at the beginning of the reporling periocd 12 8.6 7.6
Transfer from securityholder contributions - 286
Total available for payment 238.9 2268.7
Finance costs paid / payable and distributions payabls 2 {230.0) {212.8)
Raalised income entitfement at the end of the reporiing period 12 8.8 6.9

imited
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The GPT Group comprising General Property Trust and its Controlled Entities

Condensed Balance Sheet

As at 30 June 2005
Consolidated
30 Jun 2005 31 Dec 2004
Note $m $m

Current Assets

Cash 79.3 509
Receivables 67.1 58.9
Derivative financial instruments 19 8.6 20
Other 139 8.2
Non-current assets held for sale 4 817.7 -
Total Current Assets 786.8 127.0
Non-current Assets

investment properties 4 6,563.1 7491.3
Investments in associates and joint ventures 5 1,335.4 1,215.0
Property, plant and equipment 6,19 8241 164.7
Other financial assets 9 378.3 102.7
Deferred tax asset 5.1 -
Other 420 -
Total Non Current Assets 9,148.0 8,973.7
Total Assets 9,934.6 9,100.7
Current Liabilities

Payables 190.5 192.1
interest bearing liabilities 10 2,118.5 1,068.7
Derivaiive financial instruments 19 441 278
Provisions 119.0 1129
Total Current Liabilities 2,472.1 1,401.6
Non-current Liabilities

Interest bearing liabiities 10 1,334.4 1,624.6
Deferred tax Jiability 12 -
Provisions 3.5 -
Total Non Current Liabilities 11,3391 1,6248
Liabilities {excluding amounts attributable to

securjtyholders) 3,811.2 3,028.2
Net assets attributable to securityholders 1219 - 6,074.5
Net Assets 56,1234 -
Equity
Contributed equity 45985 -
Retained earnings _ 1,617.7 -
Foreign currency translation reserve 7.2 -
Totat Equity 12 6,1234 -

The above Condensed Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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The GPT Group comprising General Property Trust and its Controlled Entilies

Condensed Statement of Changes in Equity

Half-Year ended 30 June 2005

TICINO 3301Y

Consolldated

30 Jun 2005 30 Jun 2004
Note $m $rn

Totat equity at the beginning of the reporting period - -

Profit for the reporting period 66.2 .
Total recognised income and expense for tha reporting period 862 -
Transactions wilth GPT Group in their capactity as owners:

Transfer of iabilities attributable to unitholders from liability to equity 19 6,092.4 -

Distribution payable 2 (35.4} -
Total equity at the end of the reporting period 8,123.4 -

The above Condensed Staternent of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompmmying notes.




Condensed Cash Flow Statement

Half-Year ended 30 June 2005

Company - GPT RE Limited
File No 34819
The GPT Group comprising General Property Trust and its Controlled Entities

Consolidated
Note 30 Jun 2005 30 Jun 2004
$m tm
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts in the course of operations (inclusive of GST) 3785 3241
Cash payments in the course of eperations (inclusive of GST} (170.0) (133.0)
Interest received ' 5.0 6.0
Distributicns received from associates and joini venture enfities 43.3 48.2
Income tax expense (0.3) -
256.5 244.3
Borrowing costs {89.2) {569.8)
Net cash inflow from operating activitles 13 167.3 184.5
Cash flows from Investing activities
Payments for investment properties (199.8) (121.0)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 223 -
Payments for property under construction {60.2) {100.8)
Payments for property, plant & equipment 0.6) -
Payments for operating righis {39.5) -
Investment in associates and joint ventures {105.6) (7.5)
(Increase)/decrease in loans to associates and joint ventures (344.6) (2.8)
{Increase)/decrease in other loans 452 -
Net cash receipt on control of subsidiary 10.0 -
Net cash outflow from investing activities {672.8) {232.1)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net Short Term Notes (paid)/issued (5.0 70.0
Net Commercial Bills issued 868.3 -
Net Medium Term Notes paid (101.5) -
Proceeds fram issue of securities - 200.3
Finance costs paid to securityholders (227.9) {214.2)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 533.9 56.1
Net increase in cash 284 85
Cash at the beginning of the reporting period 50.9 44.0
Cash at the end of the reporting period 79.3 52.5

The above Condensed Cash Flow Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles,
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The GPT Group comprising General Property Teust and its Controlled Entilies

Notes to Finandal Statements
Half-Year ended 30 June 2005

{a)

()

Summary of accounting policies

Thig interim financial report does notinclude all the noles of the typs nomafly included in an annual financial report.  Accordingly, this
report is fo bs read in conjunction with the Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2004 and any public announcements made in
respect of the GPT Group ("GPT") during the interim reporiing period in accordance with the continuous disclosure requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001,

Basts of praparation

This generz! purpose financial report for the hal-year ended 30 June 2005 has been prepared in accordance with the GPT Constitution,
Australian equivalents to Intemational Finandial Reporting Standards {AIFRSs). Accounting Standard AASB 134 nterim Financial
Reporting, other authoritative pronouncemants of the Australian Accounting Standards Bosrd, Urgent Issues Group interpretations and
the Corporations Act 2001, itis prepared on the basis of the going concarn and historical cost conventions, as modified by the
revatualion of financial assets and liabiliies {indtuding derivative instruments), cartain dasses of property, plant and equipment and
investment property, which have baen measured at falr valus,

The principal accounting poficies under AIFRS and adopted in the preparation of the financial teport are set aut betaw. These policles
have been consistently applied to afi the periods presented, unfess otherwise stated.

Application of AASB 1 First-time Adcption of Australian Equivalents to International Financis! Reporting Standards

This Interim financial report is the first GPT interim financial rapart to be prepared in accordance with AIFRSs. AASB 1 First-time
Adoption of Australlan Equivalents to Infernational Financial Reporting Standards has been applied In preparing these financial
statements.

The financial statements of General Property Trust {the Trust) for the year ended 31 December 2004 ware preparad in accordance with
previous Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (previous AGAAP), Previous AGAAP differs in certain respects from
AIFRS. When preparing the GPT interim financial report for the half-year ended 30 June 2005, management has amended certain
accounting and valuation methods applied in the previous AGAAP finandial statements to comply with AIFRS. The comparative Sgures
were restaled to refiect these adjustments.

Recondiliations and descriptions of the effect of transition from prévious AGAAF to AIFRS on GPT's equity and net profit are setout In
Note 19,

Transitional exemptions

GPT stected not to apply AASB 3 Business Combinations retrospectively lo all business combinations that scourred before the transition
date of 1 January 2004. GPT elected not to apply any of the other AASB 1 exemptions and has elected to prepare comparative
information that complies with alf AIFRS including AASB 132 Financral Instruments: Presendstion and Disclosure and AASB 139
Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting for the GPT Group

On 10 June 2005, a staplked entity (the GPT Group 'GPT') was formed by stapling fogether the units in the Trust to the shares in GPT
Management Holdings Limited (the Company’). For the purposes of statutory reperting, the stapled entity reflects tha consolidated aentity.
The parent enfity and deemed acquirer in this arrangement is the Trust. The basis of this approach Is consistert with curent practice in
relafion to the financial reporting obfigations of stapled entities that were formed after 1 July 2004. The consolidated rasults reflect the
performance of the Trust and its subsidiaries from 1 January 2005 and the addifion of the Campany and its subsidiaries from the date of
cansolidation, 2 June 2005 1o 30 June 2005.

The stapled securities of GPT are quoted on the Australian Stock Exchange under the code GPT and comprisa of ona unit in the Trust
and one share in the Company. The unit and sharse are stapled together under the terms of the constiiution and cannot be traded

- separately, Each entity forming part of GPT continues as a separale legal antity in its own right under the Corperations Act 2001 and is

therefore required to comply with the reporting and disclosure requirements under the Corporations Act 2001 and Australlan Accounting
Slandards.

GPT RE Limited, the Responsible Entity of the Trust, is a wholly owned enlity of the Company.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Half-Year ended 30 June 2005

{c)

{6}

Summary of accounting policies {Continued)

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of afi subsidaries as at the reporting period and tha resulls for
the half year then ended. The Trust and its controfled entities together are referred 1o in this financial report as the GPT Group or the
consolidated entity. Entiies are fully consclidated from the date on which cantro! Is transferred to the Trust. They are deconsolidated from
the date that conlrol ceases.

The purchase method of accounting ks used to account for the acquisition of controlled entides by GPT (refer to note 1{g}).
Al balances, and effects of ransactions, betwaen the subsidlaries and GPT have been eliminated in full.

Property investment vehicles where the Trust axerts significant influsnce but does not have a controlling interest are accounted for in
accordance with Note 1(dXi).

Property investments

GPT's Compliance Plan requires that all property investmants be extemally valued at inlervals of not mere than three years and that such
valuations be reflected in the financial report of GPT. itis the policy of the Responsible Entity to review the fair value of each investment
property avery six months, Independent valuations of the individual investments are camied out each three years in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001 and GPT Conslitution, or earfier where the Responsible Entity balieves thare may be a material change in the
camying value of the property.

Expenses capltalised to properfies may include the cost of acquisition, additions, refurbishments, redevelopments, borrowing costs and
fees incurred and are subsequently recordad at fair value at the next reporting date, '

(i) irvesiment Propauty
Property (including land and buildings) held for long-tenn rental yields and that is not occupled by an entity in GPT, is classified as
investment property.

Investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset or where this is not available, an appropriate valuation method which may include discounted cashfiow
projections and the capitalisation method. The fair value reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in kght of current market conditions. it also reflects any cash outflows (excluding those relating to
fulure capital expenditure) that could be expected in respect of the property.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the assst's carrying amount only when it Is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to GPT and the cost of the tem can be measured refiably.

Land and buildings (including integral plant and equipment) that comprise investment property are not depreciated. The canrying amourt
incdudes components relaling o lease incentives and assets refating to fixed increasas in operating lease rentals in fture periods.

Changes in the fair value of an investment property are recorded in the income statement.

Soms property invesiments are held in joint cwnership arrangements (joint venture operafions). The proportionate interests in the asssets,
liabilities and expensas of a joint venture operation have been incorporated in the financial staternents under the appropriate headings.

Certain hotel investments are classified as Investment property in the parent entity financial statements, and classified as awner-ostupied
property in the consclidated financial statements as the GPT Group cwn and operate the hotels (refer to note 1(d)iii)). Property thatls
being constructed or developed for future usa as investment property is classified as property, plart and equipment ang stated at cost
untll construction or development Is complele, at which time it is reclassified and subsequently accounted for as investment property,

Land held under an operating lease is classified and actounted for as investment propsrty when the definition of investment property is
mst.

investment property held for sale is classified within non-current asset held for sale, under AASB 5 Non-current Assets Held for Safe and
Discontinued Operations.
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Summary of accounting policies (Continued)

Property frvestments (Continued)
(B} Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

(a) {nvesiments in Associates

Associates ara those entilies over which the Group has significant infuence, but not control, Investiments in associales are accounted for
in the parent entity financial statements using the cost methed and in the consolldated financial statements using the equity method.
Under this method, GPT's share of the assodiates’ net profit after tax is recognised i the consolidated income statement, and the share
of movement in reserves s recognised In reserves in the consolidated balance sheet. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the invastment.

Distributions and dividends from associates are recognised in the parent sntity's income statement, while in the consolidated financial
statements thay represent a return of GPT's investment and reduce the camrying value of the investmeant.

Afl balances, and effects of ransaclions, between the associates and GPT have been eliminated to the extent of GPT's ownership
interest.
() Investmeonts In Joint Venlre Entities

The Trust’s interest in joint venture entitias are carried at fair value. Where the underlying investment in the joint venture entity is
investment property, the fair value is determined on the same basls as investment property (refer Note 1(d)i)).

The Company’s investments In joint vanture entities are carried at cost by the parent enfity and accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements. Under this method, the Company’s share of the joint venture entities’ net profit afler tax is
secognised o the consofidated Income statement. and the share of movement n reaserves Is recognised in reserves in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Investments In joint venture entities held by ths Company are caried al the lower of the equity accounted carying amount and
recoverable amount.

(i) Qwnar Cogupied Propesty
Owner occupied property Is propesty that is held for use in supplying services by entities within GPT. The invesiments in certain hotels are

-accountad for as owner occupied in the consolidated entity as GPT own and operate the hotels.

Owner occupied properly Is classified as property, plant and equipment (refer ta note 1(f)).

{iv} Properly undsr Construction
Properties under construction are carrad at historical cost until completion, Upon completion of construction, the assets are classified as
Invastment property (refer 1o note 1{d) or property, plant and equipment (refer to nete (),

Lease Incentives

Incentives may be provided to lessees to enter inta an operating lease. These incentives may de In tha form of cash, rent free periods,
lessee or lessor owned fitouts, They are amortised over the term of the 1easa as a reduction of rental income. The carmrying amcunt of the
lease incentives is reflected in the fair value of investment properties.

Property, plant & equipment

Cartain hotels are owner occupied property and are statad at fair value, The basis of fair valus Is the 2ame as outlined in Investment
property note 1(d). The assets of the hotels are deprediated and any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is efiminated
against the carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated 1o the revalued amount of the asset.

Valualion increments on holels are recognised in the asset revaluation reserve. To the extent that an increment reverses a decrement
previously recognised in the incoms statement, the increase is first recognised in the profit and loss. Decrements that reverse previous
increments of tha same assel are first recognised against the assat revaluation reserve to the extent of the remalning reserve attritutabla
fo the asset; all other decrements ars recognised in the income statement.

Office fixiures, fitings and operating equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that Is
dirgctly attributable to its acquisition. Subsequent costs are included in the agsst's carrying amount endy when itis probable vat future
economic benefits associated with the itern will fiow to GPT and the cost of the item can be measured refiably.

1
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Summary of accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant & squipment {Continued)

Depraclation
Land ts not deprecialed. Depreciation on olher assets Is caloulated using the straight line method to aliocate (heir cost or revatued
amounts, net of their residual values, over their expected useftll lives, as follows:

Motor Vehicles 4-7years
Cffice fixtures, fittings and operating equipment §- 15 years
Buildings 40 years

An assat’s carrying amount is writlen down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrylng amount is greater than its
estimated racoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the income
statement. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the asset revaluation reserva in raspec! of those assets will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Accounting for acquisitions

Idenkifiable assets acquired and lizbilities and contingent fabilities assumed in a business combination are measured inflially at their fair
vaiues at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the falr value of the net identifiable assets acquired represents
goodwill (refar to Nole 1(c)).

Investments and financial assets

Financial assets are classified as foans and recslvables - Inans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and arise when GPT provide meney or services to a debter with no
intenton of sefling the receivable.

Loans and receivables ars carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Under this method, fees, costs, discounts
and premiums directly related to the financial assels are spread over its expecied life.

Derivatives

GPT is exposed to changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates and uses interest rate swaps, forward rale agreements, cross
currency swaps, options, and forward foreign exchangs contracts 1o hedge these risks. Such derivative finandal instruments are carried
on the balance sheet at falr value. Changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement,

interest payments and receipts under interest rate swap contracts are recognised on an accrua! basis in the income statement as an
adjusiment o interest expense during the reporting period.

Impairment of assets

Assets are raviawed for impairment whenever events or changes in crcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

Interest bearing liabilities
interest bearing Babifities are initally measured at cost, being the fair value of the consideration recaived net of issus and ather transaciion
costs associated with {he barrowings.

After inltial recognition, interesl bearing liabilities ars subsequently measured at ameortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Under this method, fees, costs, discounis and premiums directly related to the financlal liability are spread over its expected tifs,

Employee Entitlements

{a) Wages, salanes, annuwal leave and sick Jeave

Liabilites for wages and salaries, inchiding non monetary benefits, and annual feave expscied to be seiled within 12 months of reporiing
date, are recognised in gther payables in respect of employee’s services up to reporfing date and are measured at the amounts expected
to be pafd when the liabilities are settled.

Liabffitles for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when leave is taken and measwured at the rates pald or payable.

(b} Long Sem'cc Leave

The liabifity for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employea benafits and measured as the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporiing date using the projected unit credit method.
Consideration is given to expecied future wage and salary levels, experience of empioyee depariures and periods of servica. Expected
future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms o maturty and
currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated futura cash outflows.
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Summary of accounting policies (Continued)

Employee Entitlements (Contlnued)
{c} Bonus pleng
GPT recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past praciice that has created a constructive obligation.

Incoms tax

fe) Trusts
Under current tax legistation, Trusts are not lizble for income tax, provided their taxable income and taxable reallsed gains are fully
disiributed to securityholders each financial year.

{6} Campany and other laxable entilies

Deferred tax balances ara calculated using the balance sheet method. Under this method, temporary differences arise between the
carrying amount of assets and habflities in the financial statements and the tax base for the corresponding assets and liabilities. However,
an exception Is made for certain temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an asset or a Rabaily. No deferred tax asset or
fiability is recognised in relatlen to these tempoerary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at
the Ime of the transaction did not affedt aither accounting profit or taxeble profit or loss. Similarly, no dsfarred tax asset or Hability is
recognised for temporary dilferences between the carmying amount and tax bases of invesiments in controlled enfities where the parent
entity & ahle to control the Uming of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences wilt not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Defarmed tax assets and liabilifies are recognised for lemporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the
assets are recovered or liabilitles are settled.

Defesred tax agsets are recognised for temporary differences and unused tax Josses only if it s probable that future taxable amounts will
ba available to utifise those terporary differancaes and losses.

GPT and its wholly owned Austration controlied entities have not implemented the tax consolidation tegistation.

The income tax expense or revenue for ths reporiing period Is the tax payable on the current reparting psriods taxable incoms based on
the Australian company tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred lax assets and Habilities atiributable to temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, and to unused tax losses.

Foreign Currency

Forelgn currency transactions are converied to Australian dollars, being the functional and presentafion currency of entities in GPT, using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transeclions. Forelgn exchange gains and losses resulting from the setlement of such
fransactions and from the ranslation &l reporting period axchange rates of monetary assets and lisbilities denominated In foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,

Non-monetary tems that are measured in terms of historical cost are converted using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial
fransaction, Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dale when
the fair value was determined. Exchange differences arising on manetary items that form part of the netinvestmant in a foreign opsration
are taken to the profit and bss in the parent endity and against a foreign currency transiation reserve on consolidation.

Where forward foreign exchange contracts are enfered into to caver any anticipated excesses of revenue less expenses within foreign
jeint venture enttities, they are converted at the ruling rates of exchange at the reporting period. The resulting foreign exchange gaing and
losses are faken to the income statement Where they relats to the current reporting period ¢hey are considered realised gains and
fosses. Where they relate to future periods, they are considered unrealised gains and losses.

Pistributions and dividands

Distributions and dividends are paid to securityholders each quarter. A provision for distribution/dividend for the amount of any distribution
or dividend declared, determined or publicly recommended by the directors on or bsfore the end of the reporting period is recognised in
the balance sheet in the reporting period in which the payment remains outstanding.

Cash

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash indudas cash at bank, deposits at call and shost term money market securilies which
are readily converted into cash.

Revenus

Rental income from operaling leases s recognised on a straight line basis over the fease term. An asset is recognised to represent the
portion of an operating lease revenue in a reporting period relating to fixed increases in operaling lease rentals In future periods. These
assels are recognised as a component of invesiment properties. When GPT provide lease incentives to tenants, the cost of the
incentives are recognised over the lease term, on a straight line bagis, as a reduction of rental income,

Dividend and distribution income are racognised when declared. GPT's share of net profits from associates and joint venture entities is
included in the consolidated income statement and has been separately disdosed. Revenue not received at balance date is Included as 3
receivable in the balance sheet.
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Summary of accounting policies (Continued}

Expenses
Expanses inciuding rates, taxes and other outgoings s brought to account on an accruals basis.

Bomowing cosis

Borrowing costs are expensed in the reporting period in which they are incurred, except when they ars incurred in {he construction of
quelifying assels (an asset that takes a substantial period of time to gat ready for its imtended purpose) where they are capitalised in the
carrying value of the asset (refer to note 1(d})).

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of barrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable
to the entity’s development borrowings during the year, In this case 7.01% (2004: 6.92%).

Bomowing costs include:
- Interest on short termn and long term borrowings,
- Amostisation of discounts or premiums relating to bosrowings, and
- Amortisation of ancillary costs incurred In connection with the arrangement af borrowings.
- Inlerest receipts and payments under interest rate swap agresments, and
~ Fareign exchange differences net of hedged amounts on borrowings,

Earnings per security

Basic eamings per security is calculated by dividing the net profit atbribulable fo securityholders of GPT excluding any costs of servicing
equily other than ordinary securiies, by the weighted average number of ordinary securities {WANOS') cutsianding during the reporting
periad, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary securities issued dwring the reporting pericd. Far the purposs of the calcutation of the
WANOS outstanding during the reporting period, securities are taken o include those classified as Babilities up until 2 Juns 2005.

As there are no potential ordinary shares or securities, diluled eamings per security is tha same as basic samings par security.

Rounding

The financial report of GPT has been prepared in accordance with Class Order 98/0190 issued by the Austrafian Securitles &
Investments Commission, relating to the 'rounding off of amounts in the financial report to the nearest tenth of a million doliars, unless
otherwise stated. Armounts have been rounded off in the financial report in accordance with that Ciass Order.
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Consolidated
30 Jun 2005 30 Jun 2004
Sm $m
2. Finance costs and distributions paid and payable to securityholders
In respect of the six months endod 30 June 2005
Finance costs of 5.7 cents per unil paid on 20 May 2005 (23 May 2004; 5.4 cents) 115.0 108.9
{23 Aug 2004: 5.5 cents) - 110.9
Distribution of 5.7 cents per unit payabls an 26 Aug 2005 115.0 -
Finance casts and distributions paid and payable for the six months ended 30 June 2005
11.4 cenls per unit (30 Jun 2004: 10.9 cents) 2300 219.8

©On 10 Juns 2005, securityhoiders also recelved a 15 cents par unit capilal distribution of $302.5 million, refered 1o as the stapling distribution,
Unitholders autherised GPT RE Limited {the new responsible enitity for the Trust) to apply the stapling distribution to subscribe for shares in
the Company of $302.5 milllon, For each unit held in the Trust unitholders received one share in the Company, (refer Note 15).

£'000 $'000
3, Expenses

Expenses have been armived at after charging the following itams:
Audilors' remuneration;
Audiling ths financiz! report 3778 369.3
Other audit refated work 103.2 70.9
Total audit and audit related work 4810 4402
Other agsurance services 1.325.0 380.0
Total auditors' remuneration 1,806.0 820.2

Cther assurance services in 2005 is predomingntly dus diligance reviews on the intemalisation and establishment of joint veniure with
Babcock & Brown. In 2004 services were predominantly due diligencs reviews on Lend Lease Corporation Ltd's merger proposat and
Stackland's takecver praposal,

Responsible Entity's fee 15,353.0 19,720.0

GPT Management Limiled, a wholly owned subsidiary of Lend Lease Corporation Limited, was ihe Responsible Enlity of Generat Property
Trust unti! replaced on 6 June 2005, The base management fee payable by GPT to GPT Management Limited was 0.40% per annum of
gross assels, with a performance component, if applicable, of 5% of GPT's oulperformancs compared to the S&P/ASX Property 200
Accumulation Index. The total fee payable each six months was capped at 0.275% of the gross assels of the Trust. GPT Management
Limited was entitled {0 receive all or parnt of the performance fee s0 thel samings per unit for each sbx month period is not less than the
eamings per unit for the previous six month period. Based on GPT's performance for the twelve months to 30 .lune 2004, a performarice fee
of $3,468,000 was paid In respect of the six months to 30 June 2004. Mo performance fee was payable in respect of the period to 8 June
2005,
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Consolidated
30 Jun 2005 31 Dec 2004
Note $m $m
4, Investment properties
Investment property 7 6,583.1 7.491.3
Consolidated Half-Year
30 Jun 2005 31 Dec 2004
$m $m
Reconciliation
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of investment properties at the
beginning and end of Ihe current and previous repording period are set out below,
Carvying amount at start of the reporting pericd 74913 63847
Additions 1372 1286
Acquisitions 455 280.0
Transfer fromf{to} property, plant and equipment (588.5) 110.2
Transfer to non-currant assets hsid for sale (612.7) -
Leage Incantives 10.5 274
Amortisation of lease incantives (9.5) {(8.3)
Other ‘ 29 3.0
Disposals {15.0) (19.6)
Net gain from fair value adjustments . 104.4 575.3
Carrying amount at end of the reporting period 6,563.1 74913

Ths fair vatue of invesiment property includes the cost of amortised lease incentives, amortised initial direct [easing costs and the impact of
siraightiining lease income in accordanca with Austrzlian Accounting Standards. The only significant component is amoriised lease mcentwes
which amounts to $84.5m at 30 June 2005 (Dec 2004: $83.5m),
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Consolidated
30 Jun 2008 31 Dec 2004
Notg m $m
8. Investments in Associates and Joint Venturss
{a) Joint Ventures
Holding Investment Property
Erina Property Trust™ : 1294 129.2
Horton Trust* 201 17.1
Darling Park Trust* 276.7 275.0
Darling Park Property Trust* 184.4 ’ 184.4
1 Farrer Placa Trust* 258.1 258.3
2 Park Street Trust* 286.5 286.6
Roma Street Trust” 59.3 54.9
12145 1,203.4
Managing investment Proparty
Darling Park Operalor Q.2 -
European Investments
Europa Real Estate Joint Venlure S.ax.l 18 9.2 -
Total Joint Ventures 13139 1,203.4
{b) Associates
Holding Investiment Property
Kings Canyon (Watarrka) Resort Trust® 7.7 -
Managing Invastment Froparty ] .
161 Sussex St Pty Limited 0.3 0.4
Masterplanned Urban Communilies
Lend Lease (Twin Waters) Pty Limited 9.5 82
Lend Lease GFT (Rouse Hill) Pty Limited 4.0 33
13.5 115
Toltal Associates 215 11.6
Total Investments in Assoclates and Joint Ventures 1,335.4 1,215.0

* Investments in Assoclates and Joint Ventures which have investment property totaling $1,222,2m (Dec 2004; $1.203.5m). Detefls of the
investment properlies held by these unlisted trusts are disdosed in Note 7.4.
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Consolidaled

Hotel Property Offica fixtures,

including fittings &
Property under  fixtures & operating
Note Construction fittings equiproent Total
$m $m $m $m
8. Property, Plant and Equipment
Hal-Year ended 30 June 2005
Opening canying valus : 164.7 - - 164.7
Additions 635 - 086 64.1
Disposals : - - - -
Transfer from/(to) investment properties 417 - 586.5 . 686.5
Transfer from/(to) assets held for sale - - - -
Transfer from nvestment in assodates - - 8.8 83
Revaluations - - - -
Depredization charge - ~ - -
Closing camrying value 228.2 586.5 9.4 8241
Nate 7 7
. At 1 January 2005 _ ‘ .
Cost or falr valug” - - - -
Accumulated depreciation - - - -
Net carrying value - - - -
At 30 June 2005
Cost or fair valug* 2282 586.5 145 8292
Accumulated depreciation - - (5.1) (5.1)
Net carrying value 228.2 586.5 9.4 8241
Half-Year ended 31 December 2004
Opening canying value 193.6 - - 1936
Additions 813 - - 813
Disposals - - - -
Transfer from/{to} investment properties {110.2} - - (110.2)
Transfer from/(to) assets held for sale . - - -
Transfer from investment in associates - - - -
Revaluations - - - -
Depreciation charge - - - -
Closing carrying value 164.7 - - 164.7
Note 7 7
At 1 July 2004
Cost or fair value® 133.6 - - 1936
Accumulated depreciation . - - - -
Net carrying value 193.6 - - 193.6
At 31 December 2004
Cost or fair value* 184.7 - - 164.7
Accumulated depreciation - - - -
Net carrying value 164.7 - - 164.7

* Property under construction and office fixtures, fittings and operating equipment are held at cost. Hotel property
is held at falr value.
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The GPT Group comprising General Propesty Trust and ils Controllcd Entittes

Notes to Financial Statements

File No 34819

7. Detalls of Property Investments

Retail

Office

Industrfal

Hotel & Tourism

Noto

Retal

Office

Indusirial

Hotet & Towrism

Consolidated
30 Jun 2005
Investments in
Inveshment  Interests In Holel  Property under  Associates and
propeitics Operationa constraction Joint Ventures Total
$m $m $m m ¥m
4,109.1 - 54.0 149.5 4,312.6
1,868.1 - 1321 1,054.9 3,155.1
319 - 421 - 354.0
174.0 619.0 - 17.8 810.8
8.583.1 ©$19.0 2282 1,222.2 8.632.5
71 7.2 7.3 7.4
Consolldated
31 Dec 2004
tnvesiments in
Invesbment  intorosts inHoled  Property under  Assoclates snd
properties Opesations construction Joimt Ventures Total
$m $m $m $m
4,561.2 - 45.1 148.3 47526
19508 - 813 1,047.8 3,079.9
289.7 - 383 - 328.0
689.8 - - 9.4 890.0
7,491.3 - 164.7 1,203.5 3.850.5

Tha mixed class of assels (a3 refeed to in table 7.1) has been aaceted In the teble above as follows;
Melboume Cenéraf : 63.5% Retall ($474.4 m) and 36.5% Office ($272.9 m) (Dac 2004: 62.0% Retoll and 33.0% Ofice)
Bristrane Transit Centre : 83.0% Office ($48.2m) and 17.0% Hotel & Tourlsm ($10.1m) (Dec 2004: 83.0% Office ond 47.0% Mokl & Tourtsm)

Interests in hotel operations comprises $576.5m of property, plant and equipment and $32.5m of operating rights for Lizard Island, which has been

classified as other in the balance sheet.




“ompany - GPT RE Limited

The GPT Group comprising General Piopery Trust and its Contiolled Entitics File No 34819
Notes to Financial Statements

7.1 Property Investments - Investment Property

Totaf Coat
induding Date of Movament
Additions and  Latest Latest since
Acguisition Leage Exieniad indioprmsent independent  Fal Value
Name Ownership Apquisibon Frice fnceng Valuatk Ind! dend Valuer  Valualion Vahaton  30Jun 08
301} Date sm $m sm $m Sm
RETAIL
Bonnef Hae &0 Oct 2001 46 4.8 Dec 2004 Knight Frank 10 - 7.0
ACT Leqsehold K. Goddard, FAP)
Boreg Houts 50 Jul 2002 83 5.3 Sep2003 CB Richard Elis 54 4 - 54
NSW M Slewr, AP
Cosuprina Sousare 160 od 1973 45 1504 Dec 2004 Knight Frank 3300 62 33.2
NT KL Goddard, FAP)
Chartestown Square 100 Dec 1977 73 1854 Dot 2004 CB Richard EES 3855 & 28 388.4
N3V J Baras, AAPY
Padfic Highway, Chadestown 100 Oa 2002 T3 79 Sep 2003 Knght Frank 19 0.9 .9
NSW Jul 2093 53 53 KL Goddard, FAP . “ 53
Duandenong Plaza 100 Doc 1093 [+¥3 RS Sep2003 FPDSavills (NSW) 2050 AN 2071
VIC Dec 1999 603 €0.3 AD Johnston AAPE
Evina Fair 3.3, Freehokd Jun 1882 581 164.4 Dec2004 Knight Frank 285 0.5 250.0
New KL Goddard, FAR
Penrlh Piaza nduding Cinsmas 50 Jun 1874 34 2498 Dac 2004 CB Richard &lis 3384 Fa) 358.2
NS o 2002 1815 M Steur, APt
Apr 1098 8.7
High Strees, Pearth 53 Now 2002 286 34 S5tp203 CB Richwd tlis W W . 30
NSW Jan 2003 0.4 M Steur, AARt
Riiey Sauare 50 i 1054 55 B8 Sep2003 CB Richard Elfs 78 w0 - 7.6
NSW N Steur, AAFE
Sunshine Aea 100 Dec 1082 323 1834 Dec 2004 CB Richard £lis 2650 18 2BES
QLD Sep 2004 130.4 T indng, AAP]
Flaza Pprade 100 Jun 1809 4.7 12.0 Dec2(04 CB Richard Liks 9.7 0.1 98
LD — T inang. AAPI
Waoden Flaza 50 Fed 1956 374 1252 Dvc 2004  Kright Froak 2050 4 11 2361
ACT Leasehoid XL Goddard, FAPG
Cartngferd Count 100 it 1956 504 142 Dec 2004 CB Richard Flkis 1680 EIERET]
NSW J Barmas, AAR
Chirmside Park 100 hi 1988 80.5 1289 Dec 2004 Knight Fraak 166.0 0.6 166.6
ViG KL Goddard. FAPE
Waliongang Centred e 2 1996 54.0 1230 Dec2004 Knlghd Feask 207 ™ a6 204.3
NEW Oct 1958 34,8 Kl Gogdard, FAR
Floreat Fonsn 10D kit 1980 933 B7.8 Mor2004 Knighi Frank 5.0 (27 859
WA M Crowe, AAPI
Foresteray Shapplgy Centin W00 Q) TG 20 438 Sep2004 Knight Fronk &40 0.8 ¢4.8
NSW KL Goddard. FAPT
MRacamhur Square 50 Dec 1020 1350 2028 Dec2004 CB Rkhard ©his e 48 268.7
NBW M Steur, AAP|
Parkmare Shopping Centre 160 Jul 1958 1200 1316 Dec 2004 Ksight Frank 1450 08 145.8
vIC . KL Goddatd. FAPY
Homamaker City ASpioy 100 Nov 2001 G2 §31 Jun 2005  Kaight Fraak 0.0 ] 0.0
Q.0 P Kwzn, AAPY
Homormsker Clity Bankstown W00 Nov 2001 38.5 40.3 Sep2003 FPDSavls 440 3.0 47.0
NSW AD Jshnstan, AAPE
Homamakes Ciy Cannon Hit 0 Nov 2001 13,9 148 Scp2003 Jones Lang LaSals 15.7 33 18.0
aLo J Aptad, FAPY
Hememaker City Casifs 81 100 T Nev X9 254 38.7 Sep 2004 Wi Watien 3.2 23 335
NSW Jon 2003 8.7 W Wotion, FAP
Homemaker City Epging 100 Aug 2003 317 38.0 - - - - 30.9
vic
Homempker Cly Foritude Valley k) Dec 200t 72 313 Sep 2003 C8 Richard Eliis 38 ac M5
QLD T Irving. AAP)
Homemoker Clty Forliude Valley 109 Apt 2008 337 33.7 - - . - X
Siage 3, QLD . .
Homemaker Ciy Jindskee 100 Nov 2001 387 40.9 Sep 2004 Jones Leng LaSale $5.0 0.4 55.4
oL J Apied, EAPI
Homemaker City bianbymorg 100 Nov 2001 385 358 Sep003 Kright Frank 47.3 ¢.2 IR
vig k4 Schuh, AAPI
Homemaker City Moorabbin 100 Jut 2002 33 334  JunZODB Knighl Fronk 34.0 - 340
vIC M Sehun, AAP)
Homemerer Gy 1R Gravall 100 R 2091 VI8 185 War 2005 Knight Frank 22.2 - 22
a.b : P Kwan, AAP)
Homemaker Ciy Wingsor 00 Kev 2001 200 204 Jun 2095 C8 Richad Elliy 210 - 00
Q.0 T loving. AAPE
Total Retail 3.634.7

($) Frochold, crless clwrwica states, s

{2) Velunson far Chanestown was Sk, whick Jid rot incud s $0.57 of kand.

{3} Vadation for Woloagong wia $105m, which did not include Band of $5.7m.

{4} Valualinn shown supresents S0% of the Uriginot valnation 55 the oiber $0% of The asaet s shewn o5 non-tarrent asset huid for so¥ w Westfiess,

Thnhé:‘n of wabsetion of ineestinerd properios & Tl valus biing tho amonts (o which the assats could be exclanyed between wiing pustes [0 an o’ ongh fnsadticn,




ooepdly - Ul RE Limited
The GPT Group comprising Genera) Property Trust and its Controlled Entitics File No 34819
Notes o Financial Statements

7.1 Property Investments - investment Property

Tota Cost
including Dato of kcement
Addtiorg and  Latoest 1atest sinte
Agulsilion Legse Cxiemat {ndependen) Independent  Fair Value
Name Ownership Attuisiton Prite Incuntives  Valuptioh  Independent Valuar  Valualion Vauadlion 30 Jun 05
%1 Deve 5m m Sm sm om
QFFICE
Australia Square 50 Sep 1981 426 1485 hn2004  Jones Lang LaSalie 178.0 83 188.3
NSH J Diion, AARY
MLC Cenire 3 Apr 1647 2835 #1648 tlar2004 CB Richard Elis 2848 4.1 288.9
NSW . $ Falrfax, AAP!
Riverside Genve 100 Apr 1984 »0.7 3028 Sep2002 CB Richard Efis (C) 245.0 0.8 285.0
QLo Jd Porter, FAP
(ndign House {tormerdy Biack ink
House) 100 Apr 1984 9.1 158 Sep2002 CB Richard Elfis {C} 184 4§ 190
oD J Parter, FAP)
179 ERzabeth Shreet 100 Sep 1998 584 478 Sep2003 FFDSovith 610 6.1 a7.1
HWSW A Ponnifex FAR
10 & 12Me1 Street 00 Jul {908 68.6 50.0 Dec 2003 Jones Lang l.aSele 50.0 20 62,0
et \easghaid AL Lowrie, AAPE
530 Coling Strael & 100 Ul 1956 316.0 3209 Sen2003 Umis 320.0 18 R1.8
120 King Strest RJ Scrivener, FAPL
VIS
HSBC Cerve, 580 Geomge St 100 $ud 1696 10,0 2163 Mxr X0 CB Rishard €8 270 2% 288
NSW S Fealriax, AAPS
Natenel@Dockiznds Buiiding 1 00 Fad 2002 7.4 1332 Mar2004 Keight Frank 140.0 %] 140.5
Viclorks Herbaur, VIC MJ Schah, AART
Hatonai@Dockiands Buliding 2 1083 Feb 2012 €3 1102 Sep2004 Knight Frank 115.3 - 1163
Victoria Hasbour, Vi€ MJ Sahuh, AAPY
Yotal Qffice £.504.2
MIXED
Meloume Central 100 May 1899 4402
vic Mar 2001 1.3
@ 35
430.8 7210 Sep 2004 Jomes Long LoSatie 6774 69,8 7473
G Sweensy, ARR
Total Mixed 7473
INDUSTRIAL - ' )
Hatvey Road 100 May 1999 249 249 Mar2005 Savils (NS} 81.0 - 31.0
Kings Park RSW AD Johnslon. AAPI
Part Cit-West (ndusida Edtats 0 Aug 1454 8.0 636 Mar200d FPDSaVls £53 T2 625
Grieve Pde & Donertys Rosg R Bowman, AAPL
Allong Narth ViC
Quad 1, Padkview Divee 100 Sun 2001 153 156 Jm2ud  Collers intemational 186 . 16.8
Homebush 8ay NSW Leasehold . A Groheam, AAP
Casd 2, Parkview Driver 100 Det 2000 23 158 Jun2p0d  Cotiers Inmationd) 187 03 9.0
Hoemstush Bay NSW Leasehold A Graham, AARL
Quat 8, Parkviow Drive hie] Sdor 2003 A3 183 - - - - 19.2
Homebush Bay NSW Leasehoid
8 Herb Eliott 1008 Aug 2004 8.5 X - - - - [
Homebush Bay NSW Leasehold
7 Figiem Ddve 100 hd 2004 10.2 10.2 - - - . 10.2
Homebosh Bay NSW Leasehold
7 Padcsww Drive 100 Way 2002 61 161 ¥Aay 2008 Roight Frank 180 0.1 EEX]
Homeobush By NSW L pasehoid Ti Phefan
11 Geang Ave, Cometia 100 May 1968 Q9 57.5 Se&p20U3 Kright Frank 58.0 75 655
Camells NSW WR Resatiick, FAP)
15 Beny Sireet 100 Nov 2060 10.0 103 Sep U003 Knight Frank 10.8 1.8 128
Granville NSW WR Retgilich, FAR
19 Berry Street 100 Dec 2000 e 189 Sep2003 Knight Frank 205 - 205
Granville NSW WR Reluifick. FAPY
Austrek Business Park, [ Oct 2003 25 285 - - - - F3H
Somerton VIC
Total Indusirial 19
HOTEL & TOURISH
Four Points by Sheraton Hobel 100 May 2000 148.1 1828  Mar 2005  Knight Frank 1810 - 1818
Sydney, NSW Leasrhold AFH Bell, MRICS AAP
Securly Deposit (7.0}
1740
Total Hotel & Toussm 174.0
Total Investment Properties 6,583.1

(1] Frarheld, utdsss othotwise stnfed.
(2) Anquisition costa,
€Y Secuttiy dupssd hetd by GPT.

The vasi of vaivaion of invpsiment propestioa i3 fair vedue being the s:ximks for which 1he aseets could De exchangad Detwoen wilkng 53,8 in an am's length tansaction.
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Company - GPT RE Limited

The GPT Group comprising General Property Trost and jis Controlled Entities File No 34819
Notes lo Financial Statements
7.2 Property Investments - interest in Hotel Operations
Tota! Cust
ncluding Date of Movenes
Addlons and  Lalest Latost sinee
Atquisifion Lease Extemat Indepandent tgpendent  Fak Volue
Name Cwnerchip Acqsisition Prica Incentives  Valustion  Indep Valuer Vasation  RJn (S
=t Cale o Sm &0 .
OWNER OCCUPIED HOTEL PROPERTY T
Ayers Reek Resort 160 Dec 1947 Py ) 353.0 Mo 2004 HL Hotels 338 @ 383 3028
N7 MA Cooper, AAPS
Cape Trludalion Rescrts 100 Mar 2002 15 201 Mar2004  Coffiers inlomalonal 120 - 420
LD Part taaschold MD Thomson, AP
Widman River 10 Jun 2001 9.5 11 Mar2094  diL Metels 05 0.1 08
NT Pait ieesehold wa Cooper, AAME
Badara Islund Resort 100 Jul 2001 258 5.7 - - - - 283
feilv]
Brampton Island Rasort 100 Near 2606 19.8 118 . - - - 208
QLD Leasenadd
Cragle Mountsin Resot 100 Jul 2604 1.2 1.7 - . - - 140
TAS Pan leasehokd
Dunk Isiand Resert 00 Jul 204 55.3 587 - v . ~ 358
[»:1:) Flart keasehotd
Heron Istend {inguding Wison 100 Jui 2004 44,7 4.8 - - 44.8
Esland} Leasenoid -
QLo
Sty Osks Lodga 100 Jui 2004 18.5 186 - . . - 178
QLD
Wieatham Pk 100 Jut 2008 13 EX - . . - 4.4
QLD Leasehold
Tolal Ovingr Occupled Hotel Property 5685
OPERATING RIGHTS
Lizard eiend 100 Jun 2005 30.5 395 - . - - 25
LD Leazsehokl B}
Yotal Operating Rights 25
Totat | 328 (0 Hote! Op 619.0
(1} Fresbold, uness olherwiss stotod,
2) Vahulan for Ayers Rock Reane was S300m, of ehich $6.2m soieted 1 Pt and oqiipment owned by Voyages Holels & Roto:is Ply Limion.
{8) Purchase of aze sxpiing in 2009, which trffles the purthnsor io ran ket wnd touriem acivilies ¢ the island 1o that dets,
Property investments - Property under Construction
Total Cost
Irctuding Cste o Neovermem
Addiionz ond  d.otest Latest since
Aequisition Lease Extemal Independent Independert  Book Value
Name Ovwnenship Acruisifon Price Inceatives  Vsluation Valrer N Valustion 30 Jun 05
% {1} Das $m $m 5m m $m
PROPERTY UNDER CONSTRUCTION
RETAIL
Homemzker Clly Fortitude Vatiey 00 Nar 2004 127 54.0 - - - - 540
Stage2, 01D
OFFICE
Darllng Park 2 o0 Apr 2004 321 ==X - B S B [E°X]
INDUSTRIAL
Quaxd 4, Parkview Drive 4] Jun 2004 2.7 34 - - « - 34
¥ Bay NSW Lessehold
Austrak Business Park, 50 Ot 2003 23 E7X4 - - - - 7
Somerton VIC
Tota) Property Under Construction 228.2
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The GPT Group comprising General Praparty Trust and its Controlled Entities

Notes to Financial Statements

7.4 Property Investments - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Total Cost
inttuding  Dsteof Hhereement
Addiions and  Latest Latest sice
Acquisifon Lense Extermad 1ndependent ingepencien.  Feir Yalue
Name Quaprship Acquisiion Price Inteniives  Vahugtion  Indepondent Voluer  Valuation Valudion  30an Qs
% {1} Dale S m Sm Sm
RETAR.
Eding Fair 6.7 WJun 1202 55,1 70.7 Dec 2004 Knight Frank 1282 02 1294
NSW Ushts in Toust KL Goddard, FAPI .
Henoh Parads 50 Jum 1983 A3 7.8 Dec 2004 CB Richard Ekis 87 3] 88 @
Qo Units in Trust T irving, AAP!
Marsochydore Supetsion Feb 1930 55 84 Dec200d CB Richord Efig 7z 3 103 @
Piaza QLD 163 T trving, AAP| 20,1
Tota! Retail 148,86
OFFICE
Citigroup Centre 50 Jul2ad 81.2 2683 Drc2003 FPOSavills (NSW}
NEW Writs in Trusts De 2004 2124
143 08 A Pannifex, FAPL
2685 28158 AT 232
(1.7} ™
1 Farer Plxce 2 Dec-200% 2838 2620 Dec 004 Kmiahd Feank 2983 21 2584
NSW Urdts in Trust K1 Goddand. FARY {0.3) @
Oarfing Park Comples 0 Jan 2000 7881 2676
NEW Units in Trests Mar 2001 100.0
fod 12.0 —
4676  Jan 2005 FPDSavills (NSW) 4528 03 4631 (2
A Pannifex, FAPL 2.0
Totul Office 1,005.7
MIXED
Erisbana Trunsk Cenre 50
fe o) Units in Trsst Nov 1997 28 473 Jun 2005 .Jones Lang LaSsile 3 & - 593 @
J Apted, FAPI -
TJotal Mixed 583
HOTEL & TOURISM
Rings Canyon (Watarrka) Resort
Trust 48 Jun 2005 (A4 7.7 - - - AN
Units in Trust
Total Hotel & Tourism 7.7
Total Equity Accounted Investments 12222

(1} Fravhold, unfecy cileonwion sicted,

(1 Sare of Assotinde's propety s2eew, The volua of tho TrzPs Intsrel in the Associsle’s proparty assels is incksded b the veiustion.
3) Shsre of Ascocistox other praptaty mintod et sxseisdinnistivs) wti) hava deen inddod an property (rafer cote 1))

{8) Aogiistion costs.

5 Valuson {ot Brisbans Tronsk Contre weas $60m, whisk inchuded $D.7m for phint and aquipme i owned by Roma Sirsel Opaestions Pty Limied

The basis af vakuation of invectma o prpenies f2 Gt vatue being (0 smoudts loc which thw sesuls eoL'd be 4xche nged betvoen wiliing parties In so R3S hength tnsestion,
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The GYT Group comprising General Property Trust and its Conkrolled Entities

Notes to Financial Statements

7.5 Additions to existing Property Investments
During the hall-year caded 30 June 2005 the following additions and lease incentives wers made 1o existing properly investments:

Consolldstod - Hall-Year

20 Jun X006
Investments in
Investment  interests fn Hotel  Property under  Associdics and
properties Operations construction Joint Ventures Total
&m $m i $m m

Retai 100.2 - 8.9 3.2 112.3
Offica 9.5 - 50.8 2.4 62.4
Mixed 321 - - a3 32.4
tndusirial 03 - 38 “ 46
Hotel & Tourism 5.1 - - 79 13.0
147.7 - £3.5 13.5 224.7

Consolidated - HalkYear

31 Dec 2004
Invésbrients
fnvestment  Interests inHotel  Property under  Associates and
properties Operats Joint Venbhures Totat
$m $mm $m &m

Retail ’ 83.0 - 25.2 0.8 109.9
Office 147 - 52.1 28 63,6
Mixed 78.0 - - - 78.0
Industia)l 0.3 - 20 - 2.3
Hotel & Tourism : 11,3 . - - 0.2 11,5
187.3 - 79.3 3.9 270.6

Additions 16 property investments include capitalised interest on redevelopment of $9.9 million using an interest rate of 7.01%
(D 2004: $10.4 million using 6.92%),

Melbourna Central

Consbuction commenced in November 2002 on the $260 million redevelopment of Melbourne Central. The developmert has opened In progressive
stages and the final leve! 3 keisure and entertainment precint is programmed for compiefion in the second half of 2008,

Wacarthnr Square
Canstruction commencad In September 2004 on the $200 million (GPT's share $100 million) expansion of Macarthur Square, The first stage of the
development is programned for complstion in late 2005 and the second stage in early 2008.

Penrith Plaza
Construction commenced in June 2004 on the $140 miltion expansion of Penrith Piaza, arxl is prograrmmmed for complstion in late 2005,

Rouse Hill Fowm Centre

A Masterplan Bevelopment Application was approved in March 2004 for the Rousce Hill Regianal Centre, Construction on the town centre component
is expecled 10 commence in earty 2006 and is programmed for completion late 2007.

Homemaker City Fortitude Valtey - Stage 2
I March 2004, GPT acquired a lard parcel on which Stage 2 of the Homamaker Clty Fortitude Valley has been developed. The centre will be
completed in the second half of 2005 at a total cost of $53.0 million Including acquisition costs.

Darfing Park Stage 3
in Aptll 2004, GPY purchased the Darfing Park 3 leasehold and entered into a development agreement with Lend Lease Development to develap the

29,000 sgm final tower of the Darling Park complex. Approximately 60% cof the space has been precommitted to Marsh and Mercer, Forecast cost o
compleBon in Decamber 2005 s $234 million.

The Quad, Parkview Drive, Homebush Bay

The Quad 4 leasehold tifle was acquired in June 2004 for $2.7 million inchuding acquisition costs. Quad 4 site forms part of the Quad Business Park
complex which is being developed by GPT.
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File No 34819

The GET Group comprising General Propesty Trust and its Comirolled Enlitics

Notes to Financial Statements

Additions to existing Property Investments {Continued)

Ayers Rock Resort

Wosks have commenced on the refurbishment of 80 guest rooms at Desert Gardens Hotel, These works are scheduted for completion in Seplember
2005 with a tolal pudget of $2.8 million.

Voyages Lodges {previously P&O Resarts)

A refurbishmant of Cradie Mountain Lodge has commenced and is programmed for completion in November 2005. The works include a mixhure of hult
and soft refurbishment of 83 guest rooms as wall 23 the restaurant at a cost of approximatety $3.7 million.

Purchase of Investments

Homemaker City Fortitude Valley » Stage 3

In March 2005, GPT acquired the remalring compensmt of Fortitude Valley for $33.7 miflian.

Disposal of tnvestments

Homemaker City Underwood
Homemzker City Underwood was divested in June 2008 for $19.0 million,

Wacarthur
In June 2005, GPT divested a parcel of surplus Jand kor $2.4 milllon (50% interest).

Melbourne Central « Herltage Building
In June 2005, GPT divested a sumplus property in Litlle Lonsdale Stior $2.9 milllon.

QOther information

Four Points by Sheraton Hotel ] . .

The property is wholly owned by GPT. GPT alsc has a 40% interest in an associated company, 161 Sussex Street Ply Limited (161 Sussex’) which
leases and operates the hoted.  Starwood Pacific Hotels Pty Limited {'Stanwood'), a wholly owned subsidiary of Starwood Hotels and Resorts
Warldwide Inc. owns the remaining 60% Infarest,

In May 2000, 161 Sussex leased the hotel from GPT Ror ten years, with 161 Sussex having an option 16 extend the lease for a further lem of five
years, After May 2005 the tease may be terminated by GPT if the hotel Is sold. The 161 Sussex has provided a security deposit of $7.0 mifion.

At tha time of acquisition, GPT provided a loan to 161 Sussex to fund its purchasae of business assets, the paymerd of the security deposit and initial
working capital requirements. The loan balance at June 2005 was $2.8 milfion. Since acquisilion GPT has invested an additional $2.6 million in
equity in 161 Sussex. .
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Compeny - GPT RE Limited

The GPT Group comprising General Property Trust and its Controlled Entities File No 34819
Notes to Financial Statements
Consolidated
30 Jun 2005 31 Bec 2004
$m $m
8. Commitments

Capital expenditura
At balgnce dats capital expenditure appraved but not provided for In the financlal report:
Dueg within 1 year 208.7 321.9
Due between 1 and 5 years 0.2 706

206.3 392.5
Operating leases
Estimated aggregate amount of operaling leaze expendilure agreed or contracted but not provided for in the financial repoit:
Due within 1 year 33 0.2
Due behveen 1 and 5 years 13.1 0.8
Due betwesn 5 years and expiry date of leases 48.7 22

65.1 3.3

)

Of the total operating lease commitments, $56.8m relates to an operating lease with SEA Island Holdings for the use of Lizard Island. The calculation
fs based on tha current monthly rental, The rental payment Increases every 2 years by the rate of CP! in Brisbane, which has not been reflected in the
above disclosure, This operating lease also requires the payment of 10% of all beverages sold and 20% of all accommodation and meal revenus 1o
SEA [sland Holdings, payable on a haif yearly basis. These amounts have not been included in the $56.6m commitment.

Other commitmants

Esfimated aggregate amoumt of other cormmitmsnts agreed or ¢contracted but not provided for In the financial report

Due within 1 year 20 -
Due between 1 and S years 231 -
Due between 5 yaars and expiry date of ieases - -

25.1 -

These include medium term relention arrangements for certain GPT employees that were entered into at the time of the transition of GPT employses
from Lend Lease to GPT.
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The GPT Group comprising General Property Trust and its Controlied Entities File No 34819

Notes to Financial Statements

Consolidated
30 Jun 2005 31 Dec 2004
Note $m sm
g, Other financial assets
Loans to Joint Venlures and Associates
161 Suszex St Pty Limited . 2.8 238
Lend Lease (Twin Waters) Pty Limited 171 16.5
Lend Lease GPT (Rouse HIlly Ply Limited 104 8.1
Europe Real Estate Joint Venturs S.a.rl. 18 347.3 -
37786 274
Loans to Voyages Hotels & Reserts Pty Limited
Working Capital Loan 17 - 8.5
Acquisition Loan 17 - 48.1
- 66.6
Unfisted shares in corporations
Voyages Hotlels & Resorts Pty Limited - 8.0
Roma St Operations Ply Limited 0.7 0.7
0.7 8.7
378.3 102.7

g
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The GPT Group comprising General Property Trust and its Controlled Entities

Notes to Financial Statements

Consolidated
Note 30Jun 2005 31 Dec 2004
$m $m
10. Interest bearing liabilities
Current
Short and Medium Term Notes 1k, 11 11187 9371
Commercig) Bllls 1{k), 11 309.8 131.6
21188 1.068.7
HNon current
Medium Term Naoles 1k, 11 1.208.9 1,500.1
CP! Coupon ’ (k). 11 124.5 1245
1,334.4 1,624.6
11. Fipance facilities
Bank stand-by faciities 600.0 400.0

GPT has unused siand-by facilities of $600 million (Dec 2004: $400 million) at balance date o provide liquidity backup for the Shont
Term/Medium Term Nots Programme. $400 million matures on 31 January 2008 and & further 5200 miflion matures on 22 May 2008, It is
anticipated that it will be possibie to extend all facilities.

Short Term Note / Madium Term Note Programme

The Short TermMedium Term Nole Programme {the Programme’) Is a revalving, non-underwrillen, debt programme. The Programme
pravides flexible short term and medium tarm funding to enable GPT to fund cammiltments and to act promptly on investment opportunities.
The Programme can be ferminated at the discretion of GPT and Is unsacured. The value of the notes ssusd under the Programme is limited
by the GPT constitution. The constitution fimits the amount of debt 10 no mare than 40% of the total assets, At 30 June 2005 the percentags of
debt (o total assets is 34.8%.

In August 2004, GPT issued $250 million 18 month callable Medium Term Notes which GFT could call and ¢ancel after 6 months or investors
coutd call f GPT is downgraded to a 'BBB+ or fowar. n June 2005, GPT exercised the ¢all to repay the principal and interest on thege Notes in
August 2005, §78.5 million of thasa Notes were purchased with the setlement of $300 million 3 year fixed and floating Medium Term Notes
fssued in June 2005.

Maximum face value of Short Term Notes on issue during the period 615.0 790.0
Faca value of Short Term Notes oulstanding at the end of the pericd 610.0 615.0
Maximum face value of Medium Term Notes on issue during the period ' - 1,8270 1.827.0
Face vahse of Medism Term Notes oulstarding at the end of the period 1,725.5 1,827.0

Commaercial Bills

GPT converted a $500 million Bridging Finance Facility to a $850 million Multi Optien Facility which will expire on 30 April 2008. Under this
facility as GPT's rafing has been downgraded to BBB+, the bank has a right to reduce the Facifity 10 $500 million with 120 day nofice. Althe
date of this report the Bank has not exercised this right. As at 30 June 2005, $550 million has been drawn down. On 1 July 2005, this balance
was reduced to $86.0 milfion with funds received friom Westfield in connection to the parfial sale of Pentith Plaza and Woden.

In June 2005, GPT oblained a $500 million Short Term Note Facility that expires on 1 June 2008. Al batance date $442 million had been drawn
down against this facility.
In June 2005, GPT oblained a 600 million Euro 3 year Syndicated Revolving Credit Facility. At halance date this facility was undrawn,

The GPT / Austrak Joint Venture has a $16.5 million (GPT's Share $8.3 million) Bill Facility to fund the capitatl expenditure requirements of
Austrak Business Park, Somerton. This facility Is secured by a mortgage aver Austrak Business Paik, Somerfon. As at 30 June 2005, $5.6
miltion (GPT's share $2.8 million) has been drawn down, {Dec 2004: $3.2 miflion (GPT's Share $1.6 million}}.

CPi Coupon Indexed Bonds

On 10 Becember 1898, the Trustissued CPI Coupon Indexed Bonds tolalling $125 million. The securities will expire on 10 December 2029
and have a current cougon of 7.05%. The coupon compounds quasterly at the rate of CPL
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Notes ta Financial Sfatements

Consolidated
. Half-Year Ended
30 Jun 2005 31 Dec 2004 20 Jun 2004
$m $m $m

Total Equity / Net Assets Attributable to Securityhoiders

Recongitiation of the movements between the beginning and end of the current and previcus reporting period are set cut below:

Net assets attzributable to securityholders at the beginning of the reporting

period 6,074.5 5,519.2 5,308.4
Finance costs lo securityholders 2055 7791 230.3
Less: finance costs paid {115.0) (223.8) {219.8)
Securities issued - - 200.3
Transfer to aquity (6,165.0) - -
Not assets attributahle to securityholders at the end of ths period - 8,074.5 55192

Open equity at the beginning of the period -
Transfer from net assets attributable to securityholders 6,165.0 - -

“Current yaar profit atlributable 1o securltyholders 6.2 - -
Maovement in foreign cumency transfation reserve 72 - -
Distributions payable at 30 June {115.0) - :
Closing equity at the end of the period $,1234 - -

On 10 June 20085, secunityholders also rengived a 15 cants per Ut capital distribution of $302.5 milfion, refered to as (he stapling distribution. Unitholders
authorised GPT RE Limiled (the new regponsible endtity for the Trust) to apply the stapling distibution ko subscribe for shares in the Company of $302.5 million.
Fer each unit held in the Trust unithalders received one share in the Company, (refer Note 15).

On 2 April 2004, 67 miliion units were issued via a private placement to raise $203 miflion. Units were allofled on 8 April 2004 at $2.03 under the placement,
representing a 1.5% discount to 3 day volume weighted average (VWAP) of $3.077. The units were entited 1o the full March 2004 quartsr distribuion and
subseqguent distributions.

Total equity / net assets attributable to securityholders represents

Realised income entittemnent 8.8 8.6 6.9
Unrealised income antittement 1,508.8 1,467.4 913.9
Foreign currency translation reserve 72 - -
Equity / securityholder contributions 4,598.5 4.588.5 4,508.4

: B,123.4 6,074.5 5519.2

Consolidated
30 Jun 2005 30 Jun 2004
: Note $m $m

Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
Recanciliation of profit after incoms tax to net cash provided hy operating activities
Profit after income tax expense 66.2 -
Finance costs paid/payable to security holders 205.5 230.3
Fair value adjustments (82.6) (20.3)
Revenue adjustments 6.2 6.1
Net loss/{galn) on disposal of properties (9.3) -
Interest capitatised (9.9) 9.9}
Net cash provided by operating activities befors
changes in assets and Habilities 176.1 206.2
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (0.4} 6.2}
Increasel{decrease) in payables (8.4) {15.5)
Net cash inflow from operaling activities 167.3 184.5

Reconclliation of Cash
Dizclosed in Balance Sheet as:

Cash 79.3 52.5
Mon-cash financing and investing activitios

Stapling distribution issued to securityholders 15 (302.5) -
Shares in GPT Management Holding Pty Limited issued to securityholders 156 302.5
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Half-Year ended 30 June 2005

Hotel and Masterplanned

Profit before income tax
incoms tax beneftt / (expense)
Profit affer income tax

30

Retall Office tndustrial Tourism Urban Caonsolidated
$m $m $m S Sm m
14, Segment infarmation

Prlmary reporting - business segments
Half-Year ended 30 June 2005
Totel segment ravenue 2203 116.9 36.0 83.0 0.3 4631
Share of net profit of agsociates 4.2 445 - 0.5 1.3 60.5
Unallocated revenue 1.0
Revenue 5146
Segment result 180.4 125.8 336 78.9 2.2 420.9
Responsibla Entity's fee and other (35.4)
Financing costs to institutions {(74.2)
Financing costs to seclrity holders {205.5)
Costs associated with intemalisation (40.4)
Profit betors inceme tax 65.4
Income tax bensfit / (expense) 0.8
Profil after income tax §8.2
HaM-Year ended 20 June 2004
Total segment revenus 212.8 764 18.5 334 0.7 3398
Shara of net profit of associates 44 26 ~ 15 Q.5 30.0
Unallocated revenue kN
Revenue from erdinary activilies 379.9
Segment resuit 169.2 814 145 350 12 014
Responsible Entity’s fee and other (22.2)
Financing costs lo institutions (48.9)
Financing costs to securily holders 230.3
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Stapling of the Trust to GPT Management Holdings Limited

In June 2005, the GPT Group was formed by the stapling of the tnits in the Trust to the shares in GPT Management Heldings Limited {'the
Company') foliowing unitholder approval on 2 June 2005.

The Trust and the Company entered into the Stapling Deed which sets out the terms of the relationship between the entilies with respect to
the stapled securities, Tha Stapling Deed ensures that the entitfes must operate on a co-operative basis for ihe benefit of holders of Stepled
Securities as a whale.

As a result of tha stapling the Trust s considerad, for accounting purposes, fa have gained control of the Company and has consolidated the
Company from 2 Juna 20085, being the date the Stapling Deed bscame unconditional,

The stapling was implemented on 10 June 2004, being the dale on which shares were issued lo investors in GPTMH and stapled such that
the GPT Group stapled securilies traded as one security on the Austrafian Stock Exchange under tha code GPT. The stapled security
comprises ona unit in the Trust and one share in the Company.

On implementation, tha Trust unitholders received a 15 cents per unit capital distribulion of $302.5 million, refered to as the stapling
distribution. Unitholders suthorised GPT RE Limited (the new responsible anifity for the Trust) to apply the stapiing distribution to subscribe for
shares In the Company of $302.5 miflion. For each unit held in the Trust unithalders received one share in the Company, The amount of the
stapling distribution had regard to: the funding requirements of the Company, funding requirements of the Joint Venture with Babeock &
Brown, the acquigition costs of the Company acquiring GPT RE Limited and Voyages Holels 8 Resorts Ply Limited.

In conjunction with the stapling, the Company acquired GPT RE Limiled to adt as the responsible entity of the Trust pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement following GPT Management Limited baing replaced by GPT RE Limited as tha rasponsible entity of the Trust.

As a result of the stapling investors in GPT will receive distributions from each component of the stapled security comprising distributioned
from the Trust and dividends from the Company.

Babcock & Brown Joint Venture

The Babcock & Brown Joint Vanture will seek to identify and invest in real estate opportunities which offer superior risk adjusted returns, and
establish and manage third party funds, The joint venture will creale a new gicbal property vehicie, with an initial focus on Europe but
encompassing other markets. Its key activities wil indude salactive investment. acliva portiofio management, investment in development
projects and propenty funds management.

On 30 June 2006, GPT invesled in European Real Estate Joint Venture S.a.r.| with squity of $39.2 million (refer Nofe 5) and a loan of $347.3
million {refer Note 9), with the joint venture having investments in 7 seed assets located in Germany and the Czech Repubiic,

Control of Voyages Hotels & Resorts Pty Limited

The Company acquired all the shares in Voyages Hotels & Resorts Pty Limited (Voyages) on 30 June 2005 for a market consideration of
$4.3m from GPT Hotel Management Limited {(GPTHM).

Prior to the acquisition, whilsl GPT received 100% of dividand income of Voyages, Voyages was not controlled by GPT for accounting
purposss and therefore not consolidated at 31 Dgcember 2004, This was dus to the shares in GPTHM comprised of two classes: A class
voling shares awnsd by GPT Opersting Company Trust (the beneficiaries of which were the GPT Unitholders) and B class income shares
owned by GPT Hotel Trust (a 1009% subsidiary of GPT).

With the acquisition Voyagas has been consolidated from 30 June 2005. All transactions between Yoyages and controlied entites in GPT
have been eliminated in full from this date.

Hotet property owned by the Trust and managed by Vovages Holels & Resorts Limited which was previously considered investment property
Is now considered to be bwned and operated by GPT and as a result has been transferred to property, plant and squipment as owner
occupied hotel property. Details of the hotel property dassified as owner occupled hotef property are disciosed in Note 7.2.
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18. Transactions with Lend Lease Group
The Responsible Entity of ths Trust up until it was replated in June 2005 was GPT Management Limited (now Lend Lease Funds
Management Limiled), @ wholly owned subsidiary of Lend Lease Corporation Limited.

Details of the Responsible Entity’s fee are disclosad In Note 3. GPT Management Limited's immediate and ulimats holding company is Lend
teass Corporation Limited,

All dealings between the Trust and Lend Lease Corporation Limited and #s controiled entities and related parties (Lend Lease') were on
normal commercial terms and conditions and material dealings are reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management Commitiee. All contracts are
subject to commercial appraisal, on g basis accaptable to GPT Management Limited, by an external valuer or a qualified external pacty
approved by GPT Management Limited.,

The following transactions have taken plate with tha Lend Lease Group up until 6 Juns 2005:

Consolidated
30 Jun 2008 30 Jun 2004
$m Sm
Capital expenditure in relation to contracts for development, refucbishment and
upgrades 1298 134.8
Purchase of Darling Park Stage 3 - 30.0
Property management inciuding property maintenance and
insurance . 13.7 144
Rental income from Lend Lease Group 01 - 5.8
teome guaranteed by Lend Lease under developmeant and
sala agreements - 02
GPT's share of Associates Responsible Entity fee 02 .
Agreement with Lend Lease Corporation to provide for a smooth and orderly
transition of business of responsible entity of GPT from GPT Managemeant Limited
to the new respensible entity to be known as GFT RE Limited. The agreemant
covered the cperational and logistical matters for the transition. 168 - -
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18. Explanation of transition to Australlan equivalents o IFRSs

The impadts of transilion {0 AIFRS an GPT Group's tolal equity and net profit are set out below.

{)) Reconciliation of consolidated tolal equity reportad under previous AGAAP to consolidated total equily under AIFRS

Consolidated
31 Dec 2004 30 Jun 2004 1 Jan 2004
Noto $m $m $m
Totat equity under AGAAP 5,093.4 55236 . 5,315.8
AIFRS adjustments to equity:
Re-classification of units from equity to iability () (6.074.5) (5.519.2) (5.308.4)
Recognition of fair value of derivatives (d) (18.9) (4.4} {7.1)
Total equity under AIFRS - - -

The transition to AIFRS also resulled in tha reclassHication of certain balances on the balance shest. Whilst these did not affect total equity,
the significant reclassifications have been described in detail below.

{i) Reconciliation of canselidated net profit under previous AGAAP to consolidated net profit under AIFRS

Cansolidated
Year ended Half-Year ended
31 Dec 2004 30 Jun 2004
Note $m $m

Net profit under previous AGAAP 4264 2185
AIFRS adfustments to net profit:
Finance cosls to securityholders (a) {1,009.4) (230.3)
Fair value adjustments of investment properties (b) 5373 227
Fair value adjustments to investments in associafes and joint
ventures (c} 112 (5.5}
Net gain/({loss) on fair value of derivatives : (d) {11.8) 2.7
Adjustment to rental revenus induding straightiining and
amortisalion of lease incenlives (&) {13.7) {6.1)
Net proft undor AIFRS - -

(i) Reconciliation of cashflow statement

The transition to AIFRS has not resulted in any material adjustments between the cashflow statement presented under
AIFRS and pravious AGAAP.

Notes to reconciliations
{a) Classitication of units/securities

Under previous AGAAP, units issued by GPT were classified as equity an the consolidated balance sheet, At the date of transftion and in
accordanca with AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation, uritholders’ funds met the crileria of a liability. The effect of
this was to recognise a llability attributable 10 unitholders for $5,308.4m and a decrease in contriibuted equity by $4,400.8m and $907.6rn of
retained eanings. At 31 December 2004, the liability attributed {o unitholders was $6,074.5m, a decrease in contributed equity of $4,598.5m
and retained samings of $1.476.0m. This adjustmant resulted in net assets at 31 December 2004 being zera.

On 2 June 2005, amendments werse made (o clauses regarding the life of the trust within the GPT trust deed, resulting in the reclassification
of units from a liability to equity from that date.

During 1 January 2004 to 1 June 2005, when unitholders’ funds wera dassified a fiability, the retum to unitholders was disclosed as finance
costs (comprising amounts pald o securifyholders and undisiributed net assets attributable to securityholders) on the incoma statement
rather than as distributions and an increase In retained eamings respedively. The effact of this was at 30 June 2004, finance costs were
$219.8m and §10.5m respectively. At 31 December 2004 financa costs were $443.6m and $565.8m respeciively. The significant corponents
of undistributed nel assetls attributabls to securityholders is mestly made up of changes in the fair value of invesiment properties and
derivalive financial instruments. The amendmeant to the GPT trust deed on 2 June 2005, has resulted in net assets attributable to
securityhalders being redlassified as equity and the return to unitholders being disclosed as a distribution payabla at reporting date (refer Nole
2). :
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19. Explanation of transition to Australian equivalents to IFRSs (Continued)
Notes to reconcifiations {Continued)

{b) Investment property

Under pravious AGAAP, the GPT Group recognised valuation increments and decrements on investment property in the asset revaluation
reserve. Under AASB 140 fnveslment Property, all movements in investment property are recognised directly in the income statement.

As a result, the netincreasa in the fair value of the investment properties of $22.7m for the six month period ended 30 Juna 2004 and
$597.3m for the twalve months ended 31 December 2004 has been recognised directly in the Income statement. This includes a revaluation
adjustment referred ta in nots 19(e) in regard 1o lease incenlives of $6.1m to 30 June 2004 and $13.7m at 31 Decembar 2004.

At the date of transition on 1 January 2004, the effect of this was to reduce the assel revaluation reserve by $907.1m and increase opening
ratained aamings by $307.1m. {Ths effect at 30 June 2004 and 31 December 2004 was $918.2m 2nd $1,488.3m respectively.) There was no
effect on total equity.

(¢} Investments in associatas and joint ventuses

Under previous disclosure, certain associates which own investment property were dassified as invastmant properfiss in the balance gsheet,
At the date of trensition, these associates were reclassified in the balance sheet as Investments in assoctates and joint ventures in
accordancs with AASB 128 Invesiments in Associatas and AASB 131 Inferests In Joint Venturss.

The effect of this was to reduce investment properties by:

- $1,183.2m and increasg investments in associates and joint ventures by $1,183.2m at 1 January 2004

- $1,182,8m and intrease investments in associates and Jolnt ventures by $9,182.8m at 30 June 2004

- $1,203.5m and increase investments in associates and joint ventures by $1,203.8m at 31 December 2004
Thare was no effect an lotal or net assets.

Under previous AGAAP, Investments in associates were aquity accounted with movernents being recognised against the assat revaluation
resarva. At transition date, the directors elected to account for investments in joint vertures at fair value, with movements in falr valua
recognised In the income statement. There was no effect on total equity, Investiments in assodates will continua to be equity accounted.

The fair value adjustment to nvestments in associalas and joint ventures was $5.5m loss for the six montn period ended 30 June 2004 and
$11.2m profil for the twelve month period ended 31 December 2004 These balances were transfemred from asset revaluation reserve lo the
income statement for the respective periods.

(d) Devivatives

Under previous AGAAP, derivatives were not recorded on balance sheet but disciosed in the notes to the accounts. Under AASB 139
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measursment, derivatives not mesting hedging criteria are required o be measured at fair valus
through the income statement and recognised on balancs sheet.

The effect of this was to recognise the fair value of desivativas on the balance sheet as:

- a $13.6m derivative financia! azset and $20.7m derivalive financhal ilabllity at 1 January 2004

- a $17.1m derivative financial asset and $21.8m darivative financial iability at 30 June 2004

- a $9.0m derivative financial asset and $27.9m derivative financlal liability at 31 December 2004

This adjustment was recorded 23 a $7.1rm decreass against opening retained eamings. The movement in the net gain/(loss) on the fair value
of derivatives of $2.7m for the six month period ended 30 Juns 2004 and ($11.3m) for the full year ended 31 December was recognised
diractly in the income statement, Tha value of the derivative financial asset and derivative financial Bability in the balanca sheel ware adjusled
accordingly for the respective periods.

{e) Rental revenue

Under previous AGAAP, rental revenue was recognised In the income statement on an accruals basis reflecting the payment terms of the
underlying lease. Lease incentives were capitalised into the Investment property and not amorlised. Under AIFRS, rental income under leases
which contain fixed increases will be recognised on a straight fine basks over the leass term. Rental income will also be adjusted for the
amortisation of iease incentives, induding rent fres incantives, over the lease term,

The effect of Lhis, at tha date of transition, was {o creale a lease incentives asset of $56.9m and an impact of stralghtfining asset of $0.5m and
to decrease investment properties by $57.4m (30 June 2004:564.3m, 31 Decemnber 2004:$83.5m). Both of these assels are included as pant
of investment properties for disclosura purposes and as a result there is no Impact on the face of the balance sheet. The amortisation of these
balances reduced renta! revenue by $6.1m in the six month periad ended 30 June 2004 and $13.7m in the twelve months ended 31

December 2004, This was offset by the recognition of a revaluation increase of $6.1m in the six monith perind ended 30 June 2004 and
$13.7m in the twelve monihs ended 31 December 2004 in the income statement to ensure the property remained at fair value (rafer Note
19(d}).
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19. Explanation of fransition to Australian equivalents to IFRSs (Continued)

Cther significant reclassifications on transition to AIFRS

(f} Properties under construction clazsifisd as property, plant and equipment

Under previous AGAAP, properties under construction were included In, and accounted for, as invesiment properties. At the date of transition,
properties under construction have been reclassified in the balance sheet as property, plant and equipment In accordance with AASB 140
Invesiment Property and AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment.

The effect of this was (o reduce investmernt properties by:

- $101.2m and Increass property, plant and equipment by $101.2m at 1 January 2004

- $211.9m and increase property, plant and equipment by $214.9m at 30 June 2004

- §164.7m and increase property, plant and equipment by $164.7m at 31 December 2004
There was no sffect on tetal or net assets.

{1} Loans and unlisted shares reclassified from investment property

Under previous discddosure, loans to 161 Sussex St Pty Lid and investments in unlisted shares were included within investment properties in
tha balance sheet. At the date of transition, these loans and unlisted shares were reciassified in the balance shest from investment properties
to ‘cther financial assets’. These loans and unlisted shares will ba classiiad as loans and receivables in accordance with AASB 138 Financial
Instruments; Recognition and Measurement and carried at amortised cost,

The effect of this was to reduce Investment properiies by $2.8m for loans and $8.7m for unlisted shares and increase "other financial assets’
by $11.5m at 1 January 2004, 30 June 2004 and 31 Dacember 2004. There was no effect on total or net assets.

(i) Loans to Voyages Hotels & Resorts Pty Limited {(VHR)

Under previous AGAAP, ioans to VHR were dassified as ‘olher assets’ in the balance sheet, At transition date and in acocardance with AASB
132 Finandial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation, these loans wers redlassified to ‘other finencial assels’, dassified as loans and
receivables and valued at amortised cost in accordance with AASB 139 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

The effect of this was to reducs ‘other assets’ and increase ‘other financial assets’ by $10.9m at 1 Januery 2004, by $17.5m at 30 June 2004
and by $66.6m atl 31 December 2004, Thara was no effect on lolal or net asssls.

(iv) Interest bearing liabilities carried at amortised cost

Under previous AGGAP, discounts, premiums and ancillary cosls relating to borrowings were recorded as an asset and amortised, and the
principal amount of the borrowing was recorded as 3 liability. Under AIFRS, interest bearing fisbililes are recorded at amortised cost, where
the principal amount is reduced by the amount of thelr assoclated discounts, premiums and ancillary costs,

The adjustment ta state the amortised cost of interest bearing fiabilittes was to reduce 'other current assets’ and reduce ‘interest bearing
figbilities’ {bath current and non current) by $7.3m at 1 January 2004, $5.1m at 30 June 2004 and $5.3m at 31 December 2004.

Matters subsequent to the end of the reporting period

Asset Sales

On 12 February 2005 GPT announced it had entered into condilional contracts for the sale of part interests in Penrith Plaza, Woden Plaza
and Sunshine Plaza to Westfield as pant of its Internalisation process. As at 30 June 2005, the sales of Penrith Plaza and Woden Plaza
contacts had not yet been completed.

| conditianal requirements on the previously announced sele of 50% of GFT's interest in Woden Plaza in Canberra wera met by 1 July 2005
and as a consequence setilement of $242m was recelved on that date. GPT also proceaded to implement the transaction in relation lo
Penrith Plaza with $368.2m being receivad on 1 July 2005.

GPT is not obiiged to sefl ths interest in Sunshine Plaza unless certain preconditions have been met, As at the date of these financial
statements those conditions have not been mst and GPT's interest has not been sold.

Acquisitions :
On 29 June 2006 GPT announced ils intention to acquirs the El Questro Resort in Western Australla for $17.4m, this acquisition was
completed on 7 July 2005.

On 14 July 2005 GPT and its Ausirak Business Park co-owner, Austrak, reached agreemant with Coles Myer to develop a$100m national
distribution centrs for Coles Myer. GPT owns 50% of the business park and the project is scheduled for completion during the first haif of
2007.

On 1 August 2005 GPT announced the exchange of contracls for the purchase of 5 Figires Drive, Homebush Bay for $19.0m.
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Directors’ Declaration

The directors of the Responsibie Entity declere that théﬁnancial siztements and notes of the GPT Group set out on pages 5 to 35:

(@) comply with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting requirements
and

(b} give a trus and fair view of the GPT Group's financial position as at 30 June 20085, and of its performance as rapresented by the
resulls of its operations and its cash flows, for the half year ended on that date.

in the directors' opinion:
{(a) the financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, and
{b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the GPT Group will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration s made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

|74 o
Director Director

GPT RE Limited

Sydney
2 August 2005
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Matters relating to the electronic presentation of the reviewed financial
report

This review report relates to the financial report of the GPT Group (the Company) for the half-year
ended 30 June 2005 included on the GPT Group’s web site. The Company’s directors are
responsible for the integrity of the GPT Group web site. We have not been engaged to report on
the integrity of this web site. The review report refers only to the financial report identified below.
It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from
the financial report. If users of this report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from
clectronic data communications they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the reviewed financial
report to confirm the information included in the reviewed financial report presented on this web
site,

Statement

Based on our review, which is not an audit, we have not become aware of any matter that makes us
believe that the financial report of the GPT Group:

. does not give a true and fair view, as required by the Corporations Act 2001 in Australia, of
the financial position of the GPT Group (defined below) as at 30 June 2005 and of its
performance for the half-year ended on that date, and

. is not presented in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standard AASB
134: Interim Financial Reporting and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in
Australia, and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

This statement must be read in conjunction with the rest of our review report.

Scape

The financial report and dircetors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the balance sheet, income statement, statsment of changes in equity,
cash flow statement, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the directors’ declaration
for the GPT Group (the consolidated entity), for the half-year ended 30 June 2005. The
consolidated entity comprises both the General Property Trust Group (the company) and the
entities it controlled during that half-year.

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of

the financial report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent

Liability is limited by the Accountant's Scheme under the Professional Standards Act 1984 (NSW)
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and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the
financial report.

Review approach

We conducted an independent review in order for the company to lodge the financial report with
the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, Our review was conducted in accordance
with Australian Auditing Standards applicable to review engagements. For further explanation of a
review, visit our website http://www.pwe.com/aw/financialstaternentaudit.

We performed procedures in order to state whether, on the basis of the procedures described,
anything has come to our attention that would indicate that the financial report does not present
fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standard AASB 134: Interim
Financial Reporting and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view
which is consistent with our understanding of the consolidated entity’s financial position, and its
performance as represented by the cesults of its operations and cash flows.

We formed our statement on the basis of the review procedures performed, which included:

» inquiries of company’s personnel, and
. analytical procedures applied to financial data.

Our procedures include reading the other information included with the financial report to
determine whether it contains any material inconsistencies with the finaneial repost.

These procedures do not provide all the evidence that would be required in an andit, thus the level
of assurance provided is less than that given in an audit. We have not performed an audit, and
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over financial reporting
when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our review was not designed to provide
assurance on internal controls,

Our review did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by directors or
management.

Independence

In conducting our review, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian
professional ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001,

Ag;dit]&QG“Hub

PricewaterhouseCoopers

RD Deutsch Sydney
Partner . 2 August 2005
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Half yearly report
Half yearly report

Introduced 307672003, ;

Name of entity :

The GPT Group (GPT) comprising General Property Trust and its controlied entities

ABN or equivalent company Half year ended {*current period’)

reference

58 071 755 609 30 June 2005

Results for announcement to the market

$A'm
Revenues from ordinary a;:tivities up 355% w5146
Lxplanation — Refer Directors’ Report
Profit (loss) from ordinary activities after tax attributable to  up w% W 662
members
Explanation - Refer Directors’ Report
Net profit (loss) for the period stiributable 10 members up w% to 662
Explanation — Refer Directors’ Report
Distributions Amount per security | Franked amount per
seeurity
Final distributions N/A NA
Interim distributions {six months) 11.4 0.02
Record date for determining entitlements to the June | 15 August 2005
quarter disgibution
Date on which the June quarter distribution is payable 26 August 2005
Distribution Reinvestment Programme
The Distribution Reinvestment Programme does not cutrently apply.
NTA backing Current period Previous
' corresponding
peniod

Net tangible asset backing per ordinary security $3.03 $3.01

30/6/2002
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imited




Appendix 4D
Half yearly report

Control gained or lost over entities during period

Name of entity (or group of enfities)

Date of gain or loss of control

GPT Management Holdings Lid, GPT RE Ltd,
Voyages Hotels & Resorts Pty Lid

2 June 2005, 2 June 2005, 30 June 2005

Interests in entities which are not controlled entities

Name of entity Percentage of ownership Contribution to net profit (loss)
interest held at end of period or
date of disposal
Equity sccounted Current Previous Current period Previous
ast:ocia tes and jofnt Period correspondling { SA'm corresponding
neJ period pericd - $A’m
venture entities
Roma Street Trust 50% 30% 6.8 6.5
Erina Property Trust 50% 50% 38 3.8
Horton Trust 50% 50% 0.6 0.6
Darling Park Trust 50% 50% 11.7 57
Darling Park Property
Trust 50% 50% 8.0 32
2 Park Street Trust 50% 50% 103 10.4
1 Farrer Place Trust 50% 50% 7.8 79
Lend Lease GPT (Rouse
Hill) Pty Limited 49% 49% 0.0 0.0
Lend Lease Twin Waters
Resort Pty Limited 49% 49% 1.3 0.5
161 Sussex Street 40% 40% 02 0.4
FEuropean Real Estate
Joint Venture S.arl 50% 0% 6.0 Q.0
Total 50.5 39.0

If this is a half yearly report it is to be read in conjunction with the most recent

annual financial report.

30/6/2002
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The GPT Group
ASX Announcement

GPT ANNOUNCES FURTHER LEASING AT
DARLING PARK STAGE 3

2 August 2005

GPT and Rabobank Australia & New Zealand today announced they had agreed terms for a
lease over approximately 9,000 sqm at Darling Park Stage 3. GPT acquired the third and final
stage of the Darling Park Complex, which is currently under construction, in April 2004.

Rabobank has entered into a 10-year lease on Levels 13 fo 18 of the building, with sky signage
rights, from 1 July 2008,

Tony Cope, GPT'’s Office Portfolio Manager, said that securing a blue chip tenant such as
Rabobank confirmed the atfractiveness of the premium space being developed at Darling Park
Stage 3, and has continued to enhance Darling Park as an office location for major corporates
such as PWC, Fairfax, Marsh and Mercer and Singletons.

Rabobank Australia & New Zealand CEO Bruce Dick said the building would house the bank’'s

Australasian head office operations, with approximately 500 staff to occupy the premises.

“The premises offered at Darling Park were superior to other alternatives, in terms of amenities,
location and quality,” he said.

“We are delighted to have secured brand new office space in this state of the art building, which

will provide such a high level of services and excellent working environment for our staff.”

On completion the third tower will comprise 18 office levels, with approximately 30,000 sqm of
lettable area. Parking for 160 cars will be provided, linked to the Stage 1 and 2 carparks. The
building will be constructed with a high standard of services and finishes commensurate with
the existing towers. The floor layout, with floor plates of approximately 1,480 sqm, will provide
maximum flexibility for tenants and the upper floors command expansive views.
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Mr Cope said that Darling Park Stage 3 was consistent with GPT’s focus on core office

properties and would enhance GPT's $3.1 billion Office Portfolio on completion.

“The Darling Park Complex is a unique offering in the Sydney market, and completion of the
third and final office tower finalises the delivery of the masterplan for the precinct. The Complex
has traditionally attracted significant tenants such as Fairfax and PWC and we are pleased to
see the ongoing attractiveness of the Complex demonstrated in the gquality corporate tenants

we have secured for Stage 3.”

"Rabobank will join Marsh and Mercer Human Resource Consulting, part of Marsh and
McLennan Companies (MMC}, who have leased approximately 17,000 sqm in the low rise of
the building as major tenant for Stage 3.

“With the construction yet to complete, we now have only 3 floors fo lease and are confident of
having the building leased by the end of 2008, in line with our acquisition commerce,” Mr Cope
said.

ENDS

For further information please contact:
Tony Cope

Office Portfolio Manager

612 8239 3535




Company - GPT RE Limited
File No 34819

The GPT Group
ASX Announcement & Media Release

GPT EXPANDS PRESENCE AT HOMEBUSH BAY

1 August 2005

GPT today announced the exchange of contracts for purchase of 5 Figtree Drive, Sydney
Olympic Park, at Homebush Bay. The acquisition expands GPT's exposure to this precinct,

creating a portfolio of assets with the potential for future expansion,

Mr Victor Georos, Industrial & Business Parks Portfolio Manager for GPT said that the addition
of 5 Figtree Drive to GPT's Industrial/Business Parks Portfolio created a strong presence in the
Homebush Bay precinct. GPT is acquiring the building for $19.0 million (excluding acquisition
costs) with an initial yield of 7.5%.

“Since acquiring our first asset, Quad 1, in July 2001 we have progressively built a quality
portfolio through acquisition and development in what has become a vibrani business park
precinct.” The acquisition will increase GPT's investment in the Park to over $110 million.

“Combined with the adjoining sites at 7 Figtree Drive and 8 Herb Elliot Avenue, GPT will controi
a significant consolidated parcel of land in excess of 31,000 sqm with the potential for a future
commercial redevelopment with a value estimated to be approximately $400 million,” Mr Geocros

said.

The site is located in close proximity to the new 23,000 sgm campus styie office building being
constructed for the Commonwealth Bank, and will benefit from the additional retail mix to be

provided as part of the development.

“The decision by the Commonwealth Bank to commit to the precinct gives us great confidence
for the potential of our sites and provides strong support to our investment strategy. This
acquisition is a logical extension of our development pipeline in the precinct which includes the
development of the fourth and final stage of the Quad (which has been submitted for DA
approval to SOPA) and redevelopment potential at the adjoining 25,000 sqgm Samsung site,” Mr
Georos said.
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5 Figtree Drive consists of 12,800 sgm of general commercial land which is subject to a 99-year
ground lease expiring in January 2088 from the Sydney Olympic Park Authority (SOPA). The
rental for the ground lease is a nominai $1 per annum.

GPT is acquiring the building, which consists of a 9,000 sqm office and warehouse facility with
parking for 145 cars, from ACER Computer Australia Pty Ltd (ACER). ACER will lease the
building from GPT for a period from settlement of 4 years. The lease includes annual rental

increases.

With the pofential for significant campus style redevelopment in the longer term, the acquisition
is consistent with GPT's strategy to build an Industrial & Business Park Portfolio which is
attractive to quality tenants. Recent lease pre-commitments to Coles Myer and Labelmakers at
Somerton in Victoria and the addition of this site fo the existing expansion potential at Olympic
Park provide a strong base for further growth of the portfolio through development in line with
tenant demand.

ENDS

For further information please contact:

Victor Georos Donna Byrne

Industrial & Business Parks Portfolio Manager Investor Relations Manager

0412 365 906 0401 711 542
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The GPT Group
ASX Announcement & Media Release

GPT ANNOUNCES MAJOR LEASE PRECOMMITMENT
AT AUSTRAK BUSINESS PARK

14 July 2005

GPT and joint owner Austrak today announced an agreement with Coles Myer to develop a
$100 million National Distribution Centre at the Austrak Business Park, Somerton in Metbourne,
Victoria. The Business Park is located on approximately 100 hectares of industrially zoned land
and incorporates one of Australia's first fully integrated intermodai rail terminals. GPT acquired
a 50% interest in the Business Park in August 2003.

Mr Victor Georos, Industrial & Business Parks Portfolio Manager for GPT said that the
agreement to construct a 74,700 sqm distribution centre for Coles Myer extended the
developed buiiding area of the Park to over 150,000 sgm. The Coles Myer Victorian National
Distribution Centre will eventually distribute slow moving items throughout Victeria, South
Australia and Tasmania. '

“We are currently constructing a major facility for Labelmakers at the Park and more recently
leased the Park’s intermodal terminal to P&O Ports Ltd.,” Mr Georos said.

“The lease to Coles Myer further demonstrates the attractiveness of this facility to major
corporates. Coles Myer will join existing tenants including Visy/IPS, Effem Foods and Boral.”

Located on the corner of the Hume Highway and Somerton Road, the site has excellent access
to Victoria's road system and rail network. On completion of the Coles Myer and Labelmakers
facilities, the Park will be 0% developed and will retain the capacity to develop a further
370,000 sgm of land.

“The integrated concept available to tenants in the Park, as well as the supply chain savings it
provides represent a significant and ongoing benefit to Coles Myer in the development of its
distribution centre. For Coles Myer, the Austrak Business Park represents a distinct advantage.
i is this distinct point of difference to the marketing and leasing of the Business Park which has
allowed us to attract significant tenants,” Mr Georos said.
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GPT expects to achieve a yield of approximately 8% on the $100 million development, which is
due to be completed in the first half of 2007. Coles Myer will lease tt}e building for a term of 20
years from completion.

ENDS

For further information please contact:

Victor Georos Donna Byrne

Industrial & Business Parks Portfolio Manager Investor Relations Manager

0412 365 906 0401 711 542
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The GPT Group
ASX Announcement & Media Release

GPT COMPLETES SALE OF UNITS UNDER CASH SALE FACILITY
4 July 2005

As outlined in the Notice of Meeting and Explanatory Memorandum, following approval of the
Intemalisation by Stapling at the GPT unitholder meeting on 2 June 2005, a sale facility was
established fo cater for all foreign unitholders who were unable to receive their share
component of the stapled securities as a result of specific legal requirements in their respective
jurisdictions.

The units held by those foreign unitholders at 9 June 2005 were transferred to Macquarie
Securities Australia Limited (Macquarie) in their role as Sale Bank and subsequently sold on
market.

Macquarie completed the sale of these securities (24,268,868 in total) on 30 June 2005, at an
average price of $3.6462. The cash proceeds from the sale are expected to be remitted to
foreign holders participating in the facility on or arcund 13 July 2005.

ENDS

Enquiries

For further information please contact:

Michael O’Brien Donna Byrme

GPT GPT
+612 8239 3544 +612 8239 3515
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The GPT Group
ASX Announcement & Media Release

GPT ANNOUNCES IMPLEMENTATION OF PENRITH
AND WODEN TRANSACTIONS
1 July 2005

GPT today announced that it had impiemented with Westfield, the transaction regarding the
Woden Plaza Retail Centre that was outlined in the Notice of Meeting and Explanatory
Memorandum dated 2 May 2005. Both parties are proceeding to implement the transaction in
relation to the Penrith Plaza Retail Centre.

As part of these transactions Westfield will replace Lend Lease as the property manager for both
assets.

As outlined in the Notice of Meeting and Explanatory Memorandum, GPT will continue as an
owner of a 50% interest in each of these centres.

GPT also sold its one of its smaller Homemaker City assets. Homemaker City Underwood, in
Brisbane, was sold for $19.01 million, substantially above the book value at 31 December 2004
of $13.0 million. The asset, which was a smaller non-core component of the Portfolic had been
acquired with the original portfolic in November 2001 for approximately $10.5 million.

ENDS
Enquiries

For further information please contact:

Michael O’Brien, Chief Operating Officer
Ph: +612 8239 3544
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The GPT Group
ASX Announcement & Media Release

GPT EXPANDS HOTEL/TOURISM PORTFOLIO WITH THE
ACQUISITION OF
EL QUESTRO RESORT
29 June 2005

The GPT Group (GPT) today announced that it, in conjunction with Voyages Hotels &
Resorts Pty Limited (Voyages), is acquiring the highly awarded El Questro Resort
located in the Kimberley region of Western Australia. El Questro comprises a million-
acre leasehold property and provides an exceptional nature-based tourism experience
due to its diverse terrain, waterways and touring options. Completion is expected to
occur in early July.

The Resort is a perfect strategic addition to the Voyages Lodges portfolio (formerly
P&O Australian Resorts) as it enables the portfolio to provide access to the stunning
and increasingly popular Kimberley region of northwest Australia. GPT's resorts
encompass Central Australia (Ayers Rock Resort), the Great Barrier Reef (Heron,
Dunk, Lizard and Bedarra Islands), the North Queensland Rainforest region (Cape
Tribulation and Silky Oaks Lodge), the Tasmanian wilderness (Cradle Mountain Lodge)
and now the Kimberley region, offering a unique and diverse portfolio which dominates
the nature-based tourism sector in Australia.

El Questro consists of a range of accommodation, including premium rooms, cabins, a
campground and associated facilities and touring. There is a total of 73
accommodation units located in three separate properties:

Homestead 6 premium rooms

Station 12 cabins, campground, store, restaurant & bar
Emma Gorge* 55 tented cabins, restaurant & bar

Total 73 rooms/cabins

*Note: Emma Gorge was damaged by floods earlier this year and is closed for the 2005 season. GPT will
reinstate Emma Gorge at a cost of $3.25m in time for reopening in 2006 and has been compensated for
loss of profit associated with this closure.

The Resort is being acquired for $17.4m (including acguisition costs and the Emma
Gorge reinstatement costs) and is forecast to deliver a first year yield of approximately
10%.

Voyages will lease and manage the Resort, utilising its existing marketing and
distribution capacity.

Due to seasanality, El Questro is only open from late March to late October each year.
The current leasehold expires in 2044.
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Consistent with GPT's Ayers Rock Resort and Lodges properties, the Resort features
exceptional nature-based tourism attractions and is also located in close proximity to
the Bungle Bungle range, Argyle Diamond mine and the Ord River/Lake Argyle. The
area is well serviced by air and a network of sealed and dirt roads. Main gateway
airports are located at Broome and Kununurra.

Bruce Morris, GPT's Hotel/Tourism Portfolio Manager said: “This is an exceptional
opportunity to acquire a unique asset which complements GPT's existing product offer
in the experiential nature-based tourism market. El Questro is an established and
quality asset with an excellent reputation both domestically and internationally. In
addition, the Resort has various expansion options, which enhance the long-term
attractiveness of the property”.

El Questro also includes a cattle grazing business which will be acquired by Voyages.
it is intended in the near term that the cattle will be on sold to a third party.

On completion of the acquisition, GPT's Hotel/Tourism Portfolio will have a value in

excess of $790 million and will represent approximately 9% of GPT's total property
assets.

Further information and photographs

For further information please see attached Appendix and www.elquestro.com.au

ENDS
Enquiries

Michael O’Brien, Chief Operating Officer
Ph: 02 8239 3544

Bruce Morris, Hotel/Tourism Portfolio Manager
Ph: 02 8239 3541
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Appendix
Awards

El Questro Resort is well-recognised and has won the following awards:

1995 Sir David Brand Award for Tourism Excellence
Major Tourist Attraction WA

1997 Sir David Brand Award for Tourism Excellence

1998 Unique Accommodation
Luxury Accommodation

1999 Unique Accommodation

2000 Sir David Brand Award for Tourism Excellence
Unique Accommodation

2001 Sir David Brand Award for Tourism Excellence
Unigue Accommodation

2003 Major Tourist Attraction WA

2004 Maijor Tourist Attraction WA

Location




